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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

New Headquarters, New altitude, New journey
From Coke Transforming to New Materials and Energy

On behalf of the Board of Directors of China Risun Group Limited (“Risun”
or the “Company”), | am pleased to present our annual report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended December
31, 2022.

In the past 28 years, Risun has a very clear vision, the Group is always
achieving to be the World’s leading energy chemicals company — future
rooted in innovation. As the occasion of setting up the headquarters
in Beijing in early 20th century, Risun moved into Risun Plaza, the new
Headquarters in December 2022 as celebration.

REVIEW

In 2022, it was a year of challenge to China due to new wave of
COVID-19. On the other hand, it was an opportunity for rebound after the
people were survived from the new wave of COVID-19 under the accurate
and effective measurement in China. The Group also took advantage
of the both internal and external strengths to increase products’ price
spread and expand business volume in our four operation segments. In
terms of market share, geographical location, new expansion and new
energy product, the Group has achieved the followings:

. Maintaining market share in coke production volume in 2022
accounted for 1.6% (2021: 1.7%) in the world while it accounted for
2.2% (2021: 2.4%) for China’s total output;

° Operating production bases located at eight locations in Hebei,
Inner Mongolia and Shandong Provinces, China together with
Sulawesi Province, Indonesia. The Group signed four new operation
management services projects all relating to annual production
capacity of 1,000,000 tons of coke and coking chemicals, 300,000
tons of coal tar and 100,000 tons of hydrogenated benzene in
Shandong Province, China;

° Expanding its coke capacity by constructing new coking facilities of
3,000,000 tons per annum with the first production base in Huhhot,
Inner Mongolia; and

° Producing high purified hydrogen as new energy of 3.94 million
cubic meters in supplying to enterprises in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
area, China.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FREWwE(E)

CAPITAL MARKET

During the Reporting Period, the Company repurchased and cancelled
15,874,000 shares at an average price of HK$3.53 representing 0.36% to
the issued share of 4,440,000,000 shares as at January 1, 2022.

Effective from March 7, 2022, the Company was switched from Hang
Seng Composite Index (SmallCap stocks) to Hang Seng Composite Index
(MidCap stocks) and switched from Hang Seng Small Cap (Investable)
Index to Hang Seng Large-Mid Cap (investable) Index. The change of
market capitalization groupings reflected the market’s recognition of the
Company’s business performance and prospects.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND SAFETY

The Group’s investment in environmental protection since its establishment
has accumulated approximately RMB6.5 billion as at December 31, 2022.
There are over hundreds of key environmental protection projects carried
out by the environmental protection technicians and self-established
research institute specifying on environmental protection. Some of the
Group’s production bases achieved ultra-low emissions of pollutants.
Hebei Xingtai Risun Economic Development Zone was rated as a national
green industrial park. Also, there are three national green factories in
the Group. In addition, operating subsidiaries within production bases in
Hebei Province, China have been approved as Grade-A enterprises in
environmental protection performance.

Management of safety is also ensured in place with great effort so as
to standardize safety operation, eliminate risk and danger and monitor
occupational health and safety. The commitment to environmental
protection and safety by Risun is highly recognized by the management
and all the employees of the Group and the enhancement in this aspect
will always increase year by year.

DIGITALIZATION

In addition, Risun invested approximately RMB970 million since its
establishment in completing more than 60 digitalization projects in order
to get along with “completely automation and thoroughly automation;
completely informatization and thoroughly informatization” as well as
industrial Internet, intelligent manufacturing together with the use of
automatic equipment and automatic control system.

2022 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

TRERE(E

PROSPECTS

Although the Group was in a cyclical industry in China and overseas, the
business model and regional layout in China would be less cyclical by:

1. Leveling both coke and refined chemicals products, at which they
had different demand cycles. Some refined chemicals with strong
demand side allowed us to maintain the business growth;

2. Making use of the leading position and experience in coke
production, the Group could expand the business by achieving
the balance of merger and acquisition together with operation
management services. This is the balance of “asset-light” and
“capital intensive” investment strategies;

3. Developing new materials and new energy on top of coke and
refined chemicals. This could balance the traditional coke and
refined chemicals business and the purified hydrogen business;
and

4. Enhancing the Group’s competitive strengths through automation
and information technologies.

The Group aimed to level the periodic up and down and rooted on our
vision and strategies. The Group determined to take into account of
national macro economy of China to lead the business development of the
Group. It is believed that China’s economy will continue to be prosperous
and it is the Group’s initiative to assume high standard of environmental
and social responsibilities and pursue the coordination between national
development and its own business development.

Moreover, the Group believed the success would be resulted from the
recognition and support from our suppliers, customers, shareholders
and all employees. Risun would continue to uphold the philosophy of
“customer-centric and creating value for customers”, achieve win-win
business development and promote the innovation and development in
the coke, new materials and new energy industries.

Looking forward in 2023, the Group will continue to increase the market
share of all key products by expanding the operation management
together with merger and acquisition. The Group also plans to strengthen
the production line of coke and refined chemicals and further refining into
new materials and new energy such as caprolactam (CPL) and hydrogen-
based products. The main theme is to enlarge the production of the
existing products mix and manufacture some new refined chemicals
products according to the current economic situation in China and
overseas.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FREWwE(E)

DIVIDEND

In view of balancing the satisfactory operating results and business
prospects in future, the Board recommends a final dividend amounting
to RMB39.8 million for 2022 and the total dividend amount for the full
year 2022 of RMB584.1 million, representing no less than 30% to the net
annual distributable profits of the Group of approximately RMB1.9 billion,
as a return to the shareholders of the Company.

APPRECIATION

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to thank all the Group’s
employees, shareholders and business partners including but not limited
to our suppliers, customers and banks for their continuous support. The
Board and all management are looking forward to achieve another year
with momentum, growth and expansion in 2023.

Yang Xuegang
Chairman

March 30, 2023
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Revenue hits historical high
. Risun’s annual coke production/processin
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2021
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Business Highlights
E i

New industry leading position

Production/processing volume RITRAL N

continuous increases The Group achieved new industry leading
EE/M I%%g%ﬂﬂ position of World’s second largest
Caprolactam producer and Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei area’s largest high purified hydrogen

volume reaches 10.6 million tons in 2022

20224 : JBRG Z FEIRE T =&
1,060 A

Rev/enue AREET
Wz RMB100 billion

20.6

431

Net profit AR
F A RMB100 million

21.3

16.5 (Restated) (&%)

26.0

Net profit ARBET
EF RMB100 million

556.3
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Headquarters in Beijing Huhhot, Inner Mongolia
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Business Highlights (Continued)

EBmE(E)

Joint venture company CNC Risun Energy
SEARFEIEREEER

China Risun Group Limited

Xingtai production base:
MatERR :

Coke and coking chemicals
production lines

ERRELCEREER

Alcohol-ether chemicals
production line

ERECIEREER

Joint venture company Risun China Gas

B E QR REER

Huhhot production base:
HAE R ERRE -

Coke and coking chemicals
production lines

ERRELCEREER

Alcohol-ether chemicals
production line

ERELIEREER

Associated company Jinniu Risun Chemicals

BENREFEBT

Xingtai production base:
MEEERR :

Alcohol-ether chemicals
production line

ERECIEREER

Associated company Cabot Risun Chemicals
BN E R ESER{LET

Xingtai production base:

MeEtERR

Carbon material chemical
production line

BAMRELIEREER

HEEEEEBRA R

Coke and coking chemicals
production lines

ERRELCEREER

Carbon material chemicals
production lines

M RELEIEREER

Alcohol-ether chemicals
production lines

ERELIEREER

10
19

Operating Management Services
EEEER®

Coke and coking chemicals
production lines

ERRELCEREESR

Carbon material chemicals
production lines
MM BLEIEREES

Aromatics chemicals
production line

FRECIEREER

Aromatics chemicals
production lines
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Business Highlights (Continued)

Production volume / processing volume of major
products of the Group in 2022 (thousand tons)

2022F A EBITEERNEE MIET®W
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/Coke*

s®
SVl

Production volume

EE

Coking crude benzene

FILE%E

Processing volume
IE

W:css

Industrial naphthalene phthalic anhydride

Production volume

TRBWER ER
| iss2

Coke oven gas methanol Production volume
BERRSFE EE
| EZE

%Oga‘\ljgr Processing vj;)ululms%g

| EES

Caprolactam
C B

Production volume

EE

| %

High purified hydrogen
AL

Production volume
ER

\. 393.9 (BLF)

~

J

*

Calculated on a dry basis
* BHERE

Note: The production volume of each major products includes
both self-owned production and operation management’s production.
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Financial Highlights
B 154 &
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The following table sets out our key financial data for the periods or as TREIN N EBAAMSEZFR B EBRRME

of the dates indicated extracted from the audited consolidated financial EMBEE DR BTFRENFR
statements disclosed in previous annual reports and this annual report. PRt Be M AS AR SR & BT S T3k »

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
RERRREE

For the year ended December 31,

BZE12A318LLEE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
20184 20194 20204 20214 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETFT  ARETT ARETFT AREFT
(Restated) (Restated)
(45 E2)) (#5&E5))

Revenue Yzs 20,583,079 18,842,038 19,784,866 39,370,054 43,139,449
Gross profit EF 3,409,920 2,582,908 3,223,443 5,530,618 4,275,321
Profit before taxation B Al A 2,660,371 1,679,379 1,950,664 3,198,254 2,203,483
Income tax expense FTSTAx (533,358) (305,711) (296,812) (601,840) (343,992)
Profit for the year attributable to:  fE{EFERF)
Owners of the Company RREHEEA 2,088,668 1,363,165 1,652,990 2,613,689 1,855,122
Non-controlling interests FEPE R 38,345 10,503 862 (17,275) 4,369
Basic earnings per share FREREF

(RMB yuan) (AR¥T) 0.63 0.34 0.40 0.61 0.42

2022 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited



SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEMBRRARBE
As at December 31,
MW12831H

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
20184 20194 2020 20214 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEETFT ARETFT AEEFT AREFT ARETT

(Restated) (Restated)

(#45E4l) (#45&E7l)
Non-current assets FERBEE 12,473,286 14,597,914 17,258,345 24,634,133 32,713,772
Current assets REEE 10,128,823 5,603,482 7,202,710 12,147,384 13,388,852
Total assets BWEE 22,602,109 20,201,396 24,461,055 36,781,517 46,102,624
Current liabilities mEAE 16,414,072 11,889,771 13,189,632 16,840,541 25,047,079
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 1,475,014 1,511,523 2,888,635 8,846,362 8,460,516
Total liabilities Barfd 17,889,086 13,401,294 16,078,267 25,686,903 33,507,595
Net current liabilities BB EFE (6,285,249)  (6,286,289)  (5986,922)  (4,693,157)  (11,658,227)
Net assets BEFE 4,713,023 6,800,102 8,382,788 11,094,614 12,595,029

2022 Fik 15
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE W MO (8)

OVERVIEW

The Group is an integrated coke, coking chemical and refined chemical
producer and supplier together with relevant operation management
services provider in China. The Group maintains as the world’s largest
independent producer and supplier of coke by production/processing
volume in 2022, according to Frost & Sullivan (Beijing) Inc., Shanghai
Branch Co., (“Frost & Sullivan”) an independent global consulting firm.

Our industry position

The Group held leading positions in a number of refined chemical sectors
in China or globally as at December 31, 2022 as followings, according to
the Frost & Sullivan:

Coke World’s largest independent
producer and supplier
Industrial-naphthalene-based China’s largest producer
phthalic anhydride
Coke-oven-gas-based methanol
Coking crude benzene
Coal tar

Caprolactam (CPL)*

China’s largest producer

World’s largest processor

World’s second largest processor

World’s second largest producer
(In terms of production capacity)

Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei (“BTH")
area’s largest producer (In terms
of production volume)

High purified hydrogen*

* New industry’s leading position during the Reporting Period

Furthermore, the Group is an operation management service provider to
third party independent coke producers and refined chemicals producers
in order to enhance the Group’s influence in the coke and chemicals
industry.

In 2022, the Group kept its track in growth and expansion from last year
in order to cope with different challenges ahead and to create more value
to the shareholders of the Company. The Group continued its expansion
in annual capacity of all the products and its further refining ability to
high-end chemicals products with greater market demand. The Group
also actively participated in different operation management services
projects to provide management services to coke manufacturers and
refined chemicals manufacturers across the China. The Group has also
been developing new production bases through two joint ventures and
one associate in Sulawesi Province, Indonesia. The gross annual coke
production capacity of these three companies in Indonesia will be 13.4
million tons and the equity capacity in production of coke attributable to
the Group will be 4.36 million tons per annum.
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As at December 31, 2022, the Group had eight production bases
around the world and was also in the process of developing the Group’s
ninth production base in Pingxiang, Jiangxi Province, China. Among
the existing eight production bases, seven of them are located in
three different provinces of China and the eighth production base was
located in Sulawesi Province, Indonesia. The setup of production base
in Indonesia was a strategic movement and expansion to the world.
The main philosophy of the Group’s expansion is to increase our annual
production/processing volume in coke and refined chemicals according
to the market and the Group’s own Five-Year Plan from 2021 to 2025.
Gradually, there will be new production facilities commencing operation
and the Group’s growth in overall production capacity will continue. By
doing so, the Group can develop a longer and wider production chain of
approximately 55 types of refined chemicals currently. In the long run, we
will maintain our leading position of coke and refined chemicals industry
and create huge values to our shareholders.

In view of the operating results in 2022, the recent development
of China’s economy and future development needs, as well as the
willingness of sharing the results of the Group with Shareholders, the
Board recommended a final dividend of RMBO0.9 cents per share,
equivalent to HK1.0 cents per share, with a total amount of approximately
RMB39,817,000 or approximately HK$44,241,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2022 representing no less than 30% of the net profit of the
Group, subject to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

Production/processing volume

The Group’s annual coke production/processing volume was
approximately 10.6 million tons (2021: approximately 11.0 million tons),
while the annual refined chemicals production/processing volume
decreased from approximately 3.86 million tons in 2021 to approximately
3.64 million tons in 2022.

Apart from coke, the major coking and refined chemicals included coking
crude benzene, industrial naphthalene phthalic anhydride, coke oven gas
methanol, coal tar, caprolactam (CPL) and hydrogen energy products.
The annual production volume of CPL as new materials sectors and
hydrogen energy products as new energy sectors in 2022 are as follows:

384.2 thousand tons
3.94 million cubic meters

Caprolactam (CPL)
Hydrogen energy products
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s vertically integrated business model and its experience of
more than 27 years in the coke industry production chain enables the
Group to widen the downstream refined chemicals industry. Currently,
the Group has four business segments ranging from coke and coking
chemicals manufacturing, refined chemicals (including hydrogen
products) manufacturing, operation management services and trading.
During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the Group
entered into four new operation management agreements in relation to
three projects in Shandong Province, China and one project in Shanxi
Province, China to further expand the Group’s business presence in coke
and coking chemicals, coal tar and hydrogenated benzene sectors.

Apart from the exiting four business segments, the Group actively
participated into the hydrogen industrialization plan in Hebei Dingzhou,
Inner Mongolia Hohhot and Hebei Xingtai, China. The Group aimed at
creating a clean and low-carbon hydrogen energy supplier. Focusing
on the rapid development of hydrogen energy industry in Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei area, the Group is committed to develop from production, storage,
transportation, hydrogenation to usage together with radiation of intelligent
supply of hydrogen to the whole country with advanced technology and
more customer-oriented services.

Apart from setting up a subsidiary in Japan in 2021, the Group is
exploring other coke, refined chemicals and trading opportunities around
the world and especially within the Asia Pacific region. The Group set
up subsidiaries and offices for trading of raw materials of the coke and
refined chemicals industry in Singapore, Indonesia and Vietnam during
the Reporting Period.

The average selling prices (net of VAT) of the Group’s major products
during the Reporting Period are as follows:
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Coke FIx 3,041.7
Coal tar pitch HERES 5,600.9
Phthalic anhydride KEF 6,713.5
Methanol Bz 2,269.4
Benzene FiS 6,699.8
Caprolactam (CPL) CNEER 12,195.9
Hydrogen-energy products (per cube meter) TEeER(BILAK) 2.72
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Equity Capital Market

On April 12, 2022, the Company announced its intention to repurchase
its shares in the open market from time to time during the financial
year of 2022 with the total amount of no more than HK$300 million. The
share repurchases reflect the Company’s confidence in its long-term
strategy and development. During the Reporting Period, the Company
repurchased 15,874,000 shares by cash of approximately HK$56 million
in the open market and subsequently cancelled by December 31, 2022.

Environmental Protection

In 2022, the Group continued to support the policy of “carbon peak and
carbon neutrality” promoted in the PRC. The Group reduced the emission
of carbon by tracking the carbon emission, saving energy and reducing
consumption together with capturing and utilizing the carbon dioxide. The
Group kept engaging in the green and low-carbon practices, driving the
industrial chain in reduction of carbon emissions in a collaborative manner
and striving to be one of the leaders in carbon peak and neutrality in coke
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and chemical industry in the PRC.

Below is the table summarizing the key business activities of the Group

for 2022 and up to the date of this report:

TR A E BN 2022F R EE AR E A
MEBEBERE -

Time
=3

Business Activities

E SO

March 2022 — Establishment of Wuhu
Changyu Limited Partnership

202238~V EHRBERABLE

April to December 2022 — Conducting On-

Market Share Repurchase
2022F A AE12A — 05 BETTR O ER

July 2022 — Capital Injection to Hebei Risun
Energy

202247 A — it 185 REIRIE &

October 2022 — New Operation
Management Services Agreements in
Shandong Province, China

2022F 108 —H BlIL KA ] B EERG
Wk
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Entered into the partnership agreement with Great Wall (Tianjin) Equity
Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd., pursuant to which the parties agreed
to jointly establish Wuhu Changyu Investment Centre (Limited Partnership) in
sourcing potential investment in the coal industry.
HER(KR)BREREESEBAEREERRG LB HE - Bt - ATHEAR
BHAKEPRMIRERO(BRER) - SHERITENEBERE -

Exercised the share repurchase mandate to repurchase shares of the
Company in the open market.
TR BORE - RARTISELARRRRG -

Entered into the investment agreement, pursuant to which Xiamen Xiangyue
Investment Partnership Enterprise (LP) agreed to make additional capital
injection of RMB600 million to Hebei Risun Energy by way of cash injection.
I E W B BEFIRBRESRCE(BERER)AEERTI AR MM
JbBfSRERFEINTE ARBEG00A & T ©

Entered into three new operation management services agreements with three
different refined chemicals manufacturers with annual production capacity

of 300,000 tons of coal tar and 100,000 tons of hydrogenated benzene
respectively in Shandong Province, China.
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Time
RFFE

Business Activities

E O

December 2022 — New Headquarters of
the Group in Beijing
2022F 12 4 — ARE BT L RAAEETEK

January 2023 — New Operation
Management Services Agreement in

Moved into the new headquarters in Beijing as a kick off of the celebration of
28-years anniversary of the Group in 2023.
BEMIL AT - R2023F REE A 28B FE MmN T

Entered into a new operation management services agreement in relation to a
plant with production capacity of 1,000,000 tons per annum of coke and coking
chemicals in Shanxi Province, China.

Shanxi Province, China
2023F 1A —HRILFAEF I BEEEERY RPBELAENE—HEZE
i3 EmBRE o
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DEVELOPMENTAL STRATEGY

The Group was founded in 1995 and up to 2022, the Group has a more
than 27-years history of development, where we take advantage of
our leading position, experience, technology and digitalization in coke
industry to drastically expand our four business segments together with
the hydrogen products business through different development strategies.
The Group aims to strengthen the global leading position as an integrated
producer and supplier of coke and coking chemicals, refined chemicals
and hydrogen products.

Apart from the above development strategies, there are nine competitive
advantageous abilities that the Group believed and enabled to deploy
and execute the development strategies effectively in order to enhance
the leadership in coke and coking chemicals, refined chemicals industry
and hydrogen products business:

1. Scale advantageous ability

The Group is the world’s largest independent coke producer and
supplier of coke by production/processing volume and enjoy
economies of scale which enabled us to become more competitive
in terms of costs, product quality and customer relationships among
the seven production bases in China and one production base in
Indonesia.

2. \Vertically integrated advantageous ability

The vertically integrated business model helps improving the
Group’s production efficiency and achieving synergies through
centralized and unified management and reducing exposure to
market volatility and price fluctuations.
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Production base advantageous ability

All of the production bases are located in industrial parks approved
by local government authorities. The production bases are located
near most of the major customers and suppliers and transportation
infrastructure, such as national railway networks, major highways,
expressways and ports, which provide the Group with multiple
transportation options.

Cost control advantageous ability

The Group actively control the expenditures in cost of sales
and services, selling and distribution expenses, administrative
expenses, finance costs and income tax expenses. The Group
formulated a comprehensive and mature coal preparation and
blending computer system based on our IT infrastructure and
experience so as to widen the price spread between our products
and our raw materials both in coke and refined chemicals.

Centralized sale and marketing advantageous ability

The Group is market-oriented and all the products are sold under
the brand “RISUN” via the centralized sale and marketing system
operated by the Group. The Group maintains low levels of finished
product inventories and adopt a “zero inventory” policy and strive
to achieve minimal inventory of our coke products. The Group
produce based on the periodical production plans which are
adjusted regularly pursuant to the customers’ demands.

Innovation advantageous ability

The research and technology personnel focuses on the innovation
of production and energy and resource efficiency to improve our
manufacturing processes and reduce the environmental impact of
our production processes. The Group also commits to improving
product added value and extending the industrial chain.

Automation and information technologies
advantageous ability

The production bases are highly automated and we established a
centralized system connecting our Manufacturing Execution System
(MES), Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) systems and the
BeiDou Navigation Satellite System. The Group also uses the mobile
internet, cloud computing, internet of things, big data and intelligent
manufacturing technologies in the operations of the Group.

2022 ANNUAL REPORT
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Environmental safety advantageous ability

The Group adopts a number of measures and practices to reduce
the environmental impact of the operations, such as preventing soil
pollution, water pollution and air pollution in order to minimize the
negative impact on the environment.

Another key of our environmental measures is the Group’s resource
recovery and re-utilization. During the coking process, the Group
recover and re-utilize valuable coking by-products, from which
we manufacture our refined chemical products. With the vertically
integrated business model, we also re-utilize the heat from our
production processes and re-use wastewater and other fluids after
appropriate treatment.

Risk mitigation advantageous ability

The Group monitors the business operations of our customers,
including but not limited to their inventory levels, production output
and sales volumes, via our on-site customer service personnel. This
can promptly understand the downstream demand for our products,
adjust our production plans and mitigate the risks associated with
price fluctuations and changes in demand for our products.

During the Reporting Period, the Group enhanced the nine
competitive advantageous advantages by achieving the followings:

1. Continuously upgrading the coal blending technology by
mixing more types of coals in predetermined and controlled
quantities and qualities so as to achieve more optimistic
characteristics in the production of coke products. The Group
aims to achieve a cost of coal blending that is RMB50-100
per ton lower than the industry average;

2. Continuously increasing the portion of railway transportation
up to 85% among other transportation methods including
highway and port transportation;

3. Obtained qualification for transporting hazardous chemicals
and built a fleet;

4. Constructed three-in-one hydrogen refueling station in
Dingzhou, Hebei Province;

5 Continuously increasing the overall automation rate and
coke and coking chemicals automation rate up to 98%
and 100% respectively by making use of industrial internet
and intelligent manufacturing in furtherance of the Group’s
philosophy of “complete automation, thorough automation;
complete informatization, thorough informatization”; and

LERRED

REERRZIAEERHOE - R HAM
EHRLHRBNTE - i bt
TR KRR RZERSR - LALLE D
HIRENAEEPE -

BIR B A AR R BIR IR R
F—{EEE - AEBEEREBEH W
WEHMABEENE(CRIER - LA
ELRIERERBICTER - BBt
—EMEEBIER  BPETERNALE
BB BT E /R B ETTEFFA ©

RRIEHIES

AEEENRESEFPRIEABGEREP
MEBEE  BRETRRFENRFE -
EENHEE U REERE TR
MEMNFR - ABEMIOEETS -
WHE R BRI PIE B HE
R -

REHA - AEBRBER AT
ERTNARFES

1. TEMRARERN - BEZES
RREIZTEEETE RITHNEE K&
HEETRE  UWEEEEEK
EXREREERE - A£EE
RSB A BT 3 K FE AR
b - BMERRIE A R¥B50-1007T ¢

2. THRSHKERDLY - Z2
REREAOZERTANAEN
85%

3. ESeR(EmMERERILE
et ol Siig

4. PRAEEEMER=E—MN
uth

2]

5 FIRAI¥EHAREEEEN
REHAEE T2 A8 - &
K88t Z22EEL  BERE
BAbLIMES TEHIERSEEH
BERER  FLERBEL
F o D RIERI98%F100% ¢ K

2022 i
RE B EEARA A

23




Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BIEE LT ()

24

6. Established a centralized procurement center at group level
in December 2022 to unify the procurement and allocation
from different merchants, brands and qualities to the Group’s
production bases and operating subsidiaries in a more
effective and efficient way. It is believed that this could
reduce manufacturing costs by RMB100 million per annum.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

2023 is the middle year of our next Five-Year Plan up to 2025. Despite the
impact of the COVID-19, the Group still made a profit of RMB1.9 billion
in 2022. Looking forward, the Group will make use of different ways of
operation management, merger and acquisition together with the setup of
joint ventures with well-known enterprises to increase our market share by
production/processing of coke, refined chemicals, new materials and new
energy products.

Coke

The coke industry was under the supply-demand reform in the previous
years, which will continue in 2023. The reform is to eliminate the coke
production capacity from high-polluting coke enterprises. Coking
furnaces of 4.3 meters or below in China had ceased operation in the past
3 years and will continue to shut down in different provinces of China,
and the demand of coke will be supplemented by the other existing coke
production capacity from other coke enterprises. The Group believes that
the selling price of coke will benefit from the supply-demand reform.

The Group expands the coke production/processing capacity by different
ways, such as merger and acquisition of existing coke enterprises, setting
up joint venture with other coke/steel enterprise and managing operations
of existing coke enterprises. Through our business expansion, we believe
that our market share of the industry of independent coke producer and
supplier will increase from currently 1.6% to a high single-digit percentage
or even a double-digit percentage in China and Asia Pacific in the next
few years. In 2023, the new coking project invested by the Group in Inner
Mongolia, China and Sulawesi, Indonesia will be completed in different
phases and will further enlarge the coke production capacity. These new
coke production capacities are particularly precious under the general
direction of climate action goals of “striving to peak carbon dioxide
emissions before 2030 and achieve carbon neutrality before 2060”.

In addition to our domestic expansion plan within China, the Group is also
exploring opportunities overseas in order to hedge the risk of unfavorable
changes in environmental protection policies in China by setting up
coking production/processing capacity in other countries.
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Refined chemicals

The Group will also enhance the production capacity of refined chemicals
facilities. The Group is now expanding the production capacity of
caprolactam in Hebei and Shandong Province, since caprolactam is
one of the potential refined chemicals with positive business prospect in
China. The Group expects that there will be a total of approximately 0.75
million tonnes of caprolactam per annum production capacity when the
expansion is completed and such annual capacity enables the Group to
be one of the leading caprolactam participants in China.

Hydrogen energy products

The Group is committed to speed up the construction progress of the
hydrogen development projects, strive to build Hebei Dingzhou, Inner
Mongolia Hohhot and Hebei Xingtai into hydrogen energy demonstration
cities and eventually become the hydrogen energy output bases in
Northern China with the support of continuous research and development
and technology innovation.

The Group will expand the transportation fleet by using more hydrogen
refueling vehicles. Also, the Group will enhance the refueling capacity of
existing hydrogen refueling stations and promote the development and
construction of the master hydrogen refueling station near Beijing so as to
radiate the storage and supply to the BTH region.

The Group will further explore new technologies such as liquid hydrogen,
green hydrogen and hydrogen fuel cells and develop more new
application scenarios such as co-generation of heat and power, hydrogen
energy transportation lines, etc in order to enrich the scope of the
hydrogen application.

COVID-19

The outbreak of novel coronavirus in early 2020 had an impact on the
world’s economy. The PRC government has taken tight measures to
control the situation. The Group has also strictly followed the requirements
by the PRC Government and will observe any new instructions by relevant
authorities of the PRC Government in future.

Starting from 2023, it is noted that the situation in China remains a low
and stable level after the outbreak occurred in the fourth quarter of 2022.
Since our operation and production is mainly focused in China, we expect
China’s economy will rebound soon and will continue to monitor the effect
to the operation and production of the Group.

A ET

AEE NS RIHEA L TRIEERE - A%E
B A EE AT 4L & IR A 8 2 W EE R &
Bt RERC AR AT ERENNBAEL
Thaz—  FERSLE - AEBEME B
Bk BESAN0TSEEMERND
WEERZ - ARAFEREARASBERATEES
MEAMmREEZ — -

RBEIRE i

REBME A IRTAEFEA R NERER -
AR EMN - AR E SR &omdt
MBEBRK BRI REIMT - WAER A E
REMAIF O T  SEKAFEILT R
HE D o

AEEREBEREZ NI ERAXER S
B o AR - AEBEBRITRA MNIIE IS
BT - HEEIE I NS A E R FA B R R
RS E R E MR o

AEEBE—SRRRE  BRE - T
TOSTEN - BRESRERE - GLH
FRBSHERSS - WERAEAEY -

FE A

2020F MR EMF AL E MR S Rt R E S
KEE - BIEHIRS - hEBRFLD SRR
RiEHE - AEBE IR BB E T BEBFHR
E o UEHERKETTFEBNEREBNE
AFTHER

HPEBED) - B20235FF % - B EIR20224F
FOFEEBRBEREERTFREDER
BAL - HREPINEEMEEETBRRETR
C RPIEE P BEEE S E TN ARRE - I
CREIRAMBAHAREKEREEN

=m0
= °

2022 i
RE B EEARA A

25




Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

B LM ()

26

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Up to the date of this report, the Group has no material subsequent
events after December 31, 2022.

DEVELOPMENT, PERFORMANCE AND STATUS OF
THE BUSINESS OF THE GROUP

The following table sets forth the Group’s financial ratios as at the dates

BERHRER

BHEEAHE B - AEBEWE2022F 12 431
AEMEAIEEE -

FEBMEBHERE - REARMRR

TRINEAEERAHR AR R FONMBLL

and for the years indicated: =
As of and for the year
ended December 31,
M12A31BR
BEZALFE
2022 2021
20225 20214
(Restated)
(#x &)
Gross profit margin® EIES 9.9% 14.0%
Net profit margin® FERZ=E 4.3% 6.6%
EBITDA margin® EBITDAREZE® 10.7% 13.9%
Return on equity® FEEEES 15.3% 23.8%
Gearing ratio® BEBEXO 1.6 1.5
Notes: Biat -

(1) Calculated by dividing gross profit by revenue for the year.
(2)  Calculated by dividing profit by revenue for the year.

(8)  Calculated by dividing earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (“EBITDA”) by revenue for the year.

(4)  Calculated by dividing profit attributable to owners for the year by equity
attributable to owners as of the end of the year.

(5) Calculated by dividing total interest-bearing borrowings by total equity as of
the end of the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The following table sets forth our total revenue and gross profit by

business segment (excluding the inter-segment revenue):

g C)

TREINHEFIZEB D BB D RKERE
MR BIED Bz Ee )

For the year ended December 31, 2022

HE202F12A1BLEE
Coke and

coking Refined Operation

chemicals chemicals management
manufacturing manufacturing services Trading Total

ERREL BALT BEeEl
EmtE EmLE FRA% g5 h
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT ARETT ARETT AREF
Total revenue Bl 16,368,438 15,430,291 116,905 11,223,815 43,139,449
Gross profit =7 2,475,714 1,072,403 17,962 709,242 4,275,321

For the year ended December 31, 2021
BZ2021F12A31BILEE
Coke and

coking Refined Operation

chemicals chemicals ~ management
manufacturing  manufacturing services Trading Total

BRREN BT ERER
EmiE EmiE e g% @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEEFT ANEEFIT ANEEFT ANEEFIT ANEEFIT

(Restated)
(45 Z7))

Total revenue ks 15,900,844 13,518,846 261,406 9,688,958 39,370,064
Gross profit =7 3,701,348 1,210,714 37,136 581,420 5,530,618
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The following discussion addresses the principal trends that have
affected our results of operations during the Reporting Period:

(a) Revenue

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2022 increased to
RMB43,139.4 million when compared with RMB39,370.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2021.

Revenue from coke and coking chemicals manufacturing business
increased by RMB467.6 million or 2.9% from RMB15,900.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB16,368.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2022, primarily due to an increase in
the average selling price of coke from RMB2,795.3 per tonne for the
year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB3,041.7 per tonne for the
year ended December 31, 2022, which was however, partially net
off by the decrease in the volume of coke sold.

Revenue from refined chemical manufacturing business increased
by RMB1,911.5 million or 14.1% from RMB13,518.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB15,430.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2022, primarily due to the increase in the
sales volume of benzene and ammonium sulfate, rebound in the
selling price of most refined chemical products since the outbreak
of COVID-19 has become under control in China.

Revenue from the operation management business decreased
by RMB144.5 million or 55.3% from RMB261.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021 to RMB116.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022, primarily due to the operation management
service for Shanxi Jinzhou Chenical Co., Ltd. has been terminated
from March 2022.

Revenue from the trading business increased by RMB1,534.8
million or 15.8% from RMB9,689.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021 to RMB11,223.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022, primarily due to the increase in the volume of
coke sold and an increase in the average selling price of coal and
coke.
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4313948 87T °

ERERELEREEEBNREE
ZE2021F12A31BIEFEMNARKE
15,900.8 B 8L MARK 46768 8
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(b) Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2022 increased to
RMB38,864.1 million when compared with RMB33,839.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2021.

Cost of sales from the coke and coking chemical manufacturing
business increased by RMB1,693.2 million or 13.9% from
RMB12,199.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to
RMB13,892.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2022,
primarily due to the increase in market prices for coking coal which
was however, partially net off by the decrease in the volume of coal
sold.

Cost of sales from the refined chemical manufacturing business
increased by RMB2,049.8 million or 16.7% from RMB12,308.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB14,357.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2022, primarily due to the
increase in the purchase price of raw material for refined chemicals.

Cost of sales from the operation management business decreased
by RMB125.4 million or 55.9% from RMB224.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021 to RMB98.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022, primarily due to the operation management
service for Shanxi Jinzhou Chenical Co., Ltd. has been terminated
from March 2022.

Cost of sales from the trading business increased by RMB1,407.1
million or 15.4% from RMB9,107.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021 to RMB10,514.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022, primarily as a result of the increase in
purchase price of products.

(b) SHERA

HZE2022F 12 A31H L FEMHERK
RIEE NREESS 864 1HB T MEE
2021 F 12 A31ALLFEAAARKE
33,839.4H87T °

ERRECEREEEBNHEEXAK
HE2021F12A31BHILFEMARE
12,1995 8 B T MAR¥1,693.2H
BT 13.9% © 2E £2022F 12 531
BIFFEMARE13,8027HET =
ZHNEROTSER LR - Af - H
EB IR R EE R A FTIREE o

Bt TEREEXEBEER AR
HZEC021F12A31HILFENARE
12,308 1B E LB MARK2,049.88
BIT16.7% * ZEE2022F 12 A 31
BItFEMARE1435798 &L £
ZHMNB I TERD R RHREER
+F -

BT I IS H S AR E = 2021
F12A31BIEFEMAREE22435E
TR AREE125 48 & 77555.9%
FEZE2022F12A31HIEFEMAR
¥o8 9B B TEmMP LTS M
TERETAFNELERRSFE R
20223 AL -

B 5 EBHIEEN A EEE2021F12
AB1AEFEMARKII0758&ET
BIMAREA4071HETEK15.4%
ZHZFE2022F12A31HIEFEMAR
10,5146 BB TEHREMRBE
B -
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(c)

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s total gross profit decreased by approximately
RMB1,255.3 million or 22.7% from approximately RMB5,530.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to approximately
RMB4,275.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2022. Gross
profit margin decreased from 14.0% for the year ended December
31, 2021 to 9.9% for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Gross profit from the coke and coking chemical manufacturing
business decreased by RMB1,225.6 million or 33.1% from
RMB3,701.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to
RMB2,475.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2022. Gross
profit margin for the coke and coking chemical manufacturing
business decreased from 23.3% for the year ended December 31,
2021 to 15.1% for the year ended December 31, 2022, primarily
due to the decrease in the margin between coke selling and coal
buying.

Gross profit from the refined chemical manufacturing business
decreased by RMB138.3 million or 11.4% from RMB1,210.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB1,072.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2022. Gross profit margin for the
refined chemical manufacturing business decreased from 9.0%
for the year ended December 31, 2021 to 7.0% for the year ended
December 31, 2022, primarily due to the decrease in the margin
between production selling and raw materials buying.

Gross profit from the operation management business decreased
by RMB19.1 million or 51.5% from RMB37.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021 to RMB18.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2022. Gross profit margin for the operation
management business increased from 14.2% for the year ended
December 31, 2021 to 15.4% for the year ended December 31,
2022, primarily due to the operation management service for Shanxi
Jinzhou Chenical Co., Ltd. has been terminated from March 2022.

Gross profit from the trading business increased by RMB127.8
million or 22.0% from RMB581.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021 to RMB709.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022. Gross profit margin for the trading business
increased slightly from 6.0% for the year ended December 31, 2021
to 6.3% for the year ended December 31, 2022.
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(d)

Other income

The Group’s other income consists primarily of interest income,
income from production waste sales, and government grants
received from several government authorities as subsidies for
the Group’s contribution to the environment protection, energy
conservation recycling resources, relocation, purchase of land use
rights, and infrastructure construction. Other income increased
by RMB137.0 million or 99.7% from RMB137.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021 to RMB274.4 million for the year ended
31 December, 2022 mainly due to the increase in interest income
and government grants.

Other gains and losses

The Group had other losses of RMB1.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022 primarily due to the fair value losses of listed
equity securities and the losses on foreign exchange of RMB83.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2022, which was however,
partially net off by the fair value gain of financial assets.

Impairment (gains) losses under ECL model, net of
reversal

The Group had impairment gains under ECL model, net of RMB87.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2022 primarily due to the
collection of certain receivables and reversal of impairment.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by RMB43.2 million
or 4.6% from RMB942.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2021 to RMB985.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2022,
primarily due to an increase in transportation expenses lead by the
increase in business volume.

(d)

HAb YA

AEBEMEMPAEZBEFBHA -
FEEEEWRA - UREXREBEIR
RRE - SR ERERIEL TR -
W2 BELEARERERERME
Z A& 75 BRT S 25 DU+ B o oAt
WA EZ2021F12A31HIEFER
ARMEA137 4B BTIEMARKE137.08
BITEk99.7% « EE(E 2022412 531
BIEFEHMARK27445E L £ 2
AT B URA KRBT BIE N o

H A A K E518

ANEBHZE2022F12A31BILEER
Hivsig A ARB1ABET  £2/
REZE2022F12831HIEFEM LT
fEiEFEH A EEEMERBEARE
834EHETT AMBAOWESBHEELAR
BEURESATIESS -

TRHE BB RREE (U
)18 - EREE

HZE2022F12A31BILFE - A&EE
BHEEBEREANRAERSTRAR
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(h) Administrative expenses (h) TTERX

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately RMB40.9
million or 4.2% from approximately RMB973.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021 to approximately RMB932.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2022, primarily due to a decrease in
staff costs.

TR M E E2021F12A31H 1L
M ARBITS8SHE LRI HWAR
WA OB ETLEA.2% + EE 20224
12A31B LFEMHAREIZIEE
T EZRREINARD °

(i) Finance costs (i) BRERA
Finance costs primarily consist of interest expenses on bank loans, BMERAEZBFRITER - HMER
other loans and finance expenses on discount of bills receivables. FERZT RERERMBENRERS
The Group’s finance costs increased by RMB92.4 million or 10.2% REERNE AR E2021F12 431
from RMB904.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 HIEFEHARKI0498 BTIEINIA
to RMB997.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2022. The R¥92.4887T5£10.2% * ZEZE2022
increase was mainly due to an increase in the bank loans. F12A3MBLEFEMARKI73EHE

TC o I MEEHRIBITERUEM o

(j) Share of results of associates () DIhEEEARIZESA
Share of results of associates decreased by RMB13.0 million DIREE N EERBE2021F12A4
or 18.0% from a profit of RMB72.2 million for the year ended A LEFEMENARE722BE T
December 31, 2021 to a profit of RMB59.1 million for the year WO ARBE1S0EETLH18.0%EEE
ended December 31, 2022, primarily due to the decrease in profits 2022F 12 A31 B IEFEMmF| A R
shared from Cabot Risun Chemicals (Xingtai) Co. Ltd. lead by the 5018 &7t * TERREMEITE LR
increase in the market price of raw materials, which was however, BIREREFESBEIORE)BRA
partially net off by an increase in profits shared from Hebei Jinniu ALz EAER D - AW - HEDH0A
Risun Chemicals Limited and Yangmei Group Shouyang Jingfu EeF BBt TERARLGEEES
Coal Co., Ltd.. M= R EAR AR Z DG FEE AT

HEH o
(k) Share of results of joint ventures (k) DIEEEFEESA

Share of results of joint ventures decreased by RMB66.8 million or
13.6% from RMB490.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2021 to RMB423.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2022,
primarily due to the decrease in profit shared from CNC Risun
Energy and Risun China Gas.

DA ELEEENB E2021412A4
1B IFFEMAREA4903FE TH LD
AR 6685 ETLH13.6% @ ZEHZE
2022F12A31H ILFEMARMEA423.5
BET  FZHRKREFPEBEEERR
MBS RBEIRE DG FIER S -
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() Profit before taxation

As a result of the foregoing factors, the profit before taxation
decreased by RMB994.8 million, or 31.1% from RMB3,198.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB2,203.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2022.

(m) Income tax expense

The Group incurred income tax expenses of RMB344.0 million for
the year ended December 31, 2022 and RMB601.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021 respectively at effective tax rates
of 15.6% and 18.8%. The decrease in income tax expense is mainly
due to the decrease in profit before taxation of RMB994.8 million.

(n) Profit for the period

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Group recorded a
net profit of RMB1,859.5 million, which represented a decrease
of RMB736.9 million or 28.4% as compared to the net profit of
RMB2,596.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2021.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s primary uses of cash are operating costs, capital
expenditures and repayment of debts in the PRC. To date, the Group
has funded the investments and operations principally with cash from
operations and debt financing from banks and other financial institutions.
The Group believes that the liquidity requirements will be satisfied through
a combination of cash flows generated from the operating activities and
proceeds from bank and other loans. Any significant decrease in the
demand for, or pricing of, the products and services, or a significant
decrease in the availability of bank loans, may adversely impact the
liquidity. As at December 31, 2022, cash and cash equivalents held by
the Group were mainly cash in the banks and on hand denominated in
RMB and deposits denominated in RMB that are readily convertible into
cash.

() BRELADR A

MR LA Z  BRBRIAEMNEERE
2021 F 12 A3TBLEFEMARE
3,198 3 E TR ARKE48EE T
531.1% * 2# E2022F 128318 1+

FEMARE2 20358 T °
(m) FTERFEX

AEBREE2022F12A31HILFE
NEZE2021F 1231 B ILFEDRIE
EFBHAIARK34408ETRA
R#¥60188 &L  EBRHED A
15.6% % 18.8% ° FTEFRHATRLFE
ARG ALE MR ARKEI4 87 E

JG ©
(n) EARE A

HE2022F12A31HILFEE - AEH
RS AR ARIE1,8595H 8 T ¢ HE
F£2021F12 A1 H EFEMGEFIAR
#2,596.45 BT ARKE736.9
BEIT28.4% °

RBEERIHBER

AEENRSTZANTENZLENRAS - &
KX REEER £S5 AEETIZUL
ERREURRITREMSBEBELR
BRNREREE - AEEMAEKEEHM
SReREMRITEEMERAEREZA
ARAIARERBESF R - HER KRS
MFERERERLIR AR TR - AT RIGH
RITERKRBRLD - HUEHRBESER
THRIFE - 2022612310 - AEEFTHH
MIRERATEENTIERUARKTER
RITRFHEAS  URABEERARSH
AARBEEHENTFR
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The following table sets forth the cash flows for the years indicated:

TREJIRFAIRFENRERE

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
(Restated)
(455
Net cash generated from operating KEEBMERSFE
activities 3,163,708 4,205,730
Net cash used in investing activities WERSTARSF5E (9,180,633) (5,127,101)
Net cash generated from financing BEEBMERSFE
activities 4,925,931 2,022,107
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash ReERRSEBYWFORL)IEM
equivalents (1,090,994) 1,100,736
Cash and cash equivalents at the FURELREEEY
beginning of the year 2,280,914 1,181,955
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes P S By o2 10,749 (1,777)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of FERBEERRSEEY
the year 1,200,669 2,280,914
(a) Net cash generated from operating activities (a) KEEBMFRSFEE
For the year ended December 31, 2022, our net cash generated HE2022F12A31BIEFE - B
from operating activities was approximately RMB3,163.7 million and MK ESMBRSFENRARE
was less than our net cash generated from operating activities for 3,163.7E & T - (KR EZE 2021612
the year ended December 31, 2021 of approximately RMB4,205.7 TAIEFEMKELTEMEREFHE
million, primarily due to the decrease of profit. PNAREEA205.7E BT EEHRF
R o
(b) Net cash used in investing activities (b) BEEEFTAE S FE

For the year ended December 31, 2022, our net cash used in
investing activities increased from approximately RMB5,127.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to approximately
RMB9,180.6 million primarily due to the final payment for the
acquisition of subsidiaries under Wuhu Shunri Xinze Equity
Investment Partnership (LP)* (ZE#IERZ 2 M EREA B ¥
(BBRA%)) and its subsidiaries and the increase of purchase of
property, plant and equipment and payment of other long-term
payables of RMB2.9 billion.
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(c) Net cash generated from financing activities (c) RMEBEEEAMSRE T
For the year ended December 31, 2022, our net cash generated HZE2022F12A31B ILFE - HMX
from financing activities increased from approximately RMB2,022.1 BMEZEMERSIFERLEE2021F
million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to approximately 12A318 IEFEMHAREE2,022.1H
RMB4,925.9 million. The increase was primarily due to the increase BILEMEHNARME492598ETT -
of proceeds from new interest — bearing borrowings. ZILINE E BB I EEROTE

BN -

INDEBTEDNESS B8
(a) Borrowings (a) B
Most of our borrowings are denominated in RMB. The following REAERAANREEE - TREIE
table shows our bank borrowings as of the dates indicated: ZFTR B HEARSRITER
December 31,2022 December 31, 2021
2022F12A31H 2021127315
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT
Bank loan, secured RITEF  EHE 9,532,525 5,286,852
Bank loan, unsecured BAET - BER 4,677,063 4,488,217
14,209,588 9,775,069
Other loans, secured EfER  cHE 3,188,292 2,331,098
Other loans, unsecured HEfER - S8 298,183 41,224
3,486,475 2,372,322
Discounted bills financing HREERME 2,532,610 1,439,289
Total st 20,228,673 13,586,680
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2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB in million %  AMBinmilion %
AR¥BET % AREBET %
Fixed rate bank and other ERFITREMER
borrowings 13,306.7 1.17-12.00 9,473.6 1.82-12.00
Floating rate bank and other R BBRITREMER
borrowings 6,922.0 1.58-8.00 41131 1.58-8.00
Total e 20,228.7 13,586.7
The total borrowings increased by approximately RMB6.6 billion, or BERABNEHZ2021F12A31BHA
48.5%, to approximately RMB20.2 billion as of December 31, 2022 R¥A136E LB N4 A RME66I1E Tk
from RMB13.6 billion as of December 31, 2021, primarily due to an 485% + EE(E2022F 12 A31 HH LY
increase in bank loan and other loan. ARB202(ETT - FEHNRITERR
H A &L -
The borrowings denominated in currencies other than the functional AR BN G AN S EHER
currencies of respective entities are set out below: BEREN AT
As of December 31,  As of December 31,
2022 2021
#Z12A31H EZE12A318
2022 20215
RMB in million RMB in million
AEMBET AREBET
usb e 1,883.8 1,023.9
JPY Hi 21 3.7
Total @zt 1,885.9 1,027.6
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(b) Lease liabilities

Our Group had the following total future minimum lease payments as
of the dates indicated:

(b)y HEBE

REER PR AR KRERENK
HERIT

December 31,2022 December 31, 2021
20226128310 2021F12A31H

RMB000 AMB000

ARETT AEETT

Lease liabilties REEE 473,234 214,008
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS BAEE

Details of the capital commitments outstanding of the Group are set out
under Note 39 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

CURRENCY RISK AND MANAGEMENT

The Group maintained some of the capital denominated in foreign
currency, mainly USD, EUR and HKS$. Fluctuations in exchange rate
would influence the reserve in foreign currencies to a certain extent and
the Company is exploring and discussing measures to respond to foreign
exchange risk. The analysis of the exposure to exchange rate risk is set
out in Note 40 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

*  For identification purpose only

NEBRBITEAAENFEHAGATH
HRFEMIFESQ ©

E¥ERREE

AERBNBFHROUINEHENES T2
RETT  BRTRBTT - EXNEEHINEE
EREBE-EFE  ARFEERRKA®
JRE 39 SN B O #E 7 o T TED R I o L B ) 0
i er e MBS R M E40 -
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group entered into guarantee agreements with certain commercial
banks in the PRC with respect to loan facilities granted to joint ventures
and a related party. Under these guarantee agreements, the Group
agreed to be jointly and severally liable for the borrowings incurred
by such joint venture and related party. The table below sets forth the
maximum liabilities under such guarantees as of the dates indicated.

HREE

AEFHEPEETHERTUARTELELE
R—ZBM T OERBE R LR - B
BREERBE  ARBEREUZSELE
KR T E AR AR R R AR AEEAE
TRENEEAREHREEERETHRS
BfE®E-

As of December 31,

M12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB in million RMB in million
AREHET AREGET
Financial guarantees issued to joint A E P EE LI BER
ventures 3,259.8 1,647.9

As of December 31, 2021 and 2022, the outstanding balance of loans
under the loan facilities guaranteed by the Group was RMB876.5 million
and RMB1,759.5 million, respectively. In the opinion of the Directors,
the fair values of the financial guarantee contracts of the Group were
insignificant at the date of issue of the financial guarantee and no
provision is necessary at the end of each reporting period, taking into
account that the net realizable value of the pledged assets held by the
banks exceeded the facilities and credit granted to the relevant parties.
In addition, the Directors do not consider it probable that a claim will be
made against us under any of these guarantees.
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EELSREERER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YANG Xuegang (% Z ), aged 58, is an Executive Director, the chief
executive officer of the Company and the chairman of the Board. He was
appointed as an Executive Director in November 2007. He is responsible
for the overall management and business development of the Group. He is
also the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yang graduated from Hebei Hydraulic College (JA1 4k 7K F| E &} E24%)
(now known as Hebei University of Water Resources and Electric
Engineering (37 4t 7K F & 71 £ F ) in Cangzhou, the PRC in July 1985
with a diploma in hydraulic engineering construction and obtained the
hydraulic engineer qualification issued by the Handan City Labour Bureau
(HE BT 45 ) A = /@) in December 1993. He completed a master-level
training course in business administration at Renmin University of China
(F B ARKE) in Beijing, the PRC in March 2000 and was a supervisor
of a master’s degree program at Hebei University of Economics
and Business ()7 4t £ & K £ ) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC in July 2002.
He completed a further master-level training course in business
administration at the ZhongHua Yanxiu University ( # # #f (& K 2 ) in
Beijing, the PRC in September 2003. In November 2003, he obtained a
master’'s degree in business administration from Asia International Open
University (Macau) (21 CRF9) BB AR AE) in Macau. He obtained the
senior engineer qualification awarded by the Hebei Provincial Department
of Human Resources and Social Security (;ildb & A 11 B R E 4t SR E
E2) in December 2012. In January 2017, Mr. Yang obtained an executive
master’s degree in business administration from Hebei University of
Technology (3L T2 K£2) in Tianjin, the PRC.

Prior to the establishment of the Group, Mr. Yang was employed at the
Dongwushi Reservoir Management Center (BREA/KEEHER), a public
body directly subordinated to the Handan City Hydraulics Bureau (857K
FI/3), on a full-time basis for approximately 10 years from August 1985,
and became a deputy director of the Dongwushi Reservoir Management
Center from January 1988. He then joined the Group as general manager
as a result of his entrepreneurial efforts since the establishment of
Xingtai Risun Coking Limited in May 1995 and became chairman since
May 1996. Since September 2012, he has been a director of Beijing
Automic Technology Co., Ltd. (It RERFEREERHBR AR (“Beijing
Automic”), a company previously listed on the National Equities Exchange
and Quotations (Z B9 /N 2R 1 8538 5 47T) (stock code: 430245), whose
principal business is the planning of water conservancy information
projects, consultation and assessment, as well as software and hardware
product development and services, and held as to 49.92% by Mr. Yang
and parties acting-in-concert with him.

BITES

BEMEE 585 BARRIWITES - 17
BERREFSERE - FR2007F 11 AEZE
TEPTES - HEEAEENEEETER
EBEE - BNAREEESERE -

G R 1985F 7 A 2 E R R BIA M 4E 7Kk
MER SR GRS KFE H B ) - ER
KA ITRBEFESUR - WN1993F 12 A
ERMBETAEASRERKFITIZAE
& o B 2000F 3 AEF B RA B ARK
Bk TR iE TEFIRRE - K2002F7
AEEPBEARDIILLERBELTRIEE
Bl o 1 E 150200349 7 B 4L AR FEA
EREBZERS —EIEmERBELEIIRE -
2003F 11 A + HHVEPIESZEMNCRPT) B
RANFAABEENTIATEBELTSMN - FR
2012612 AL & A B REM S{RIEE
ERERTEMESR - K2017F1A » 1L
ERPEKERS Tt TEXSBEENSH
BEABI®MEEBETEM -

RSB Z A - HEEZBERNE
BOKFREEMAERERR T KEESE
BE - 819859 8 A#E4Y104F + W 5 19884 1
AREFRRAKEERERRR - 2% -
BEEBNEIE  AMeaBEEELLERA
AIFA19954F 5 A X A7 18 I A AN 58 B B 48 48
2 B1996F5 ARKAEE K - B 2012
FOREFIERBEERRERHERAA
([ERREERDES  IRREXZEA
REEFNEEROEZEZFGEE (RO R
5% 0 430245) - T B EBKARKFEEIEE R
g BIAMHEAREG B ERRE R
fR7S - WHBTERE —HRITBHALTEES
49.92% %15 °
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Over the years, Mr. Yang has taken up leadership roles in a number of
industry associations, including those relating to the coking industry.
He has been the vice president of CCIA since October 2005, and the
president of HBCCIA since January 2006. In February 2008, Mr. Yang
was elected and had served as a deputy to the 11th NPC and in February
2013, he was elected as a deputy to the 12th NPC.

Mr. ZHANG Yingwei (3& %{&), aged 51, is an Executive Director and vice
president of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director in
July 2009. He is responsible for the overall management of the Tangshan
Production Base and the Cangzhou Production Base.

Mr. Zhang graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in coal chemistry from
Tangshan Institute of Technology (& LI T 12 £ 1l £ Bt ) (now known as
North China University of Science and Technology (Z£ it 32 T K &) in
Tangshan, the PRC in June 1993. He completed a master-level training
program in business administration at Hebei University of Economics and
Business (JA1tAE & AE2) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC in November 2004. He
also obtained a master’s degree in metallurgical engineering at Hebei
Polytechnic University (A14£3# T K) (now known as North China University
of Science and Technology (221£3 T KE2)) in Tangshan, the PRC in April
2007. In December 2012, he obtained the senior engineer qualification
from the Title Reform Leading Group Office of Hebei Province (Ja1db& B
BUERG NERAE).

Mr. Zhang has over 29 years of experience in iron and steel industry
and coal chemical industry. Mr. Zhang worked for Xingtai Metallurgical
Machinery and Mill Roll Joint Stock Corporation (i & /& & # # &l 88 %
BB B2 7)) (now known as Sinosteel Xingtai Machinery & Mill Roll Co.,
Ltd. (H 8 &2 [ 8 & #e ik L 8% 5 PR /2 71)), whose principal business is the
manufacturing of metallurgical machinery and parts for the production of
metallurgical rolls and equipment, from September 1993. He then joined
the Group in February 1996. He has been serving as a vice president of
the Coking Chemistry Sub-committee of the National Technical Committee
on Coal Chemical Industry of Standardization Administration of China
(2B TIZE/LITZ B €) since May 2016, an expert on the expert
panel of the CCIA since January 2018 and an expert of both the HBCCIA
and the Department of Industry and Information Technology of Hebei
Province since April 2018.
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Mr. HAN Qinliang (%) %), aged 49, is an Executive Director and vice
president of the Group. Mr. Han was appointed as an Executive Director
in May 2011. He is primarily responsible for the management of the
financial, accounting and information systems of the Group.

Mr. Han obtained a diploma in industrial economy administration from Hebei
College of Mechanical Engineering (i] 3t # & £2 [ ) in Xingtai, the PRC in
June 1993 (as a result of a merger, Hebei College of Mechanical Engineering
is now part of Hebei University of Science and Technology (A1t EHEAER)).
In December 2001, he obtained a bachelor's degree in accounting from
Hebei University of Economics and Business (A 1E48 & X&) in Shijiazhuang,
the PRC. In July 2001, he became a member of Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ({F BIFE & 5TEM17E) in the PRC. In December 2003, he
obtained the senior accountant qualification from the Title Reform Leading
Group Office of Hebei Province (A1t & BB A BE MAPI A E).

Mr. Han joined the Group in March 2004. Mr. Han has approximately 29
years of experience in steel and coal chemical industry. From September
1993 to April 2004, he was the deputy head of the finance department
cost division in Xingtai Machinery and Mill Roll (Group) Corporation (fB&
s e (8 ) AR 2 A) (now known as Sinosteel Xingtai Machinery &
Mill Roll Co., Ltd. (i EE M & #iELER AR A F))). In March 2004, Mr.
Han joined Xingtai Risun Trading as a general manager assistant.

Mr. WANG Fengshan ( £ & Ll ), aged 64, is an Executive Director and
vice president of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director
in September 2018. He is primarily responsible for the procurement and
sales management of the Group.

Mr. Wang obtained a diploma in statistics from Hebei University (i 16 K£2)
in Baoding, the PRC in June 1989.

Mr. Wang joined the Group in March 2004. Mr. Wang has approximately
34 years of experience in procurement and sales management. From
August 1983 to September 1996, he was the sales manager in Hebei
Hongxing Automobile Factory Co., Ltd. (JAIdb4T 295 & iEH R A R)), a
company principally engaged in the automobile and automobile parts
manufacturing business, and from October 1996 to October 1998, he was
the general manager of Bear Asia Furniture Co., Ltd. (S8R AR ER A
7l), a company principally engaged in the metal furniture and furnishings
manufacturing business. From February 1999 to January 2004, he was a
general manager of Xingtai Zhongxing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (fif & &
FEEZH RN A]), a company principally engaged in the pharmaceutical
business. In March 2004, Mr. Wang joined the human resources
department of Xingtai Risun Trading and oversaw the human resources
and administrative management in CNC Risun Coking from November
2004 to August 2009. He has been overseeing the Group’s procurement
and sales management since August 2009. Mr. Wang has been a vice
president of the HBCCIA since December 2016 and an expert on the
expert panel of the CCIA since January 2018.
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Mr. WANG Nianping ( £ £ ¥ ), aged 60, is an Executive Director and
vice president of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director
in September 2018. He is primarily responsible for the legal and risk
management of the Group.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from the Institute of
Hubei Finance (J# 1t Bf 4% 2 B7 ) (now known as Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law ( 1 & B & B & K £)) in Wuhan, the PRC in July
1984. He obtained a post-graduate degree in international trade and
a juris doctor degree from the University of International Business and
Economics ( ¥f 9 8 % & 5 KX ) in Beijing, the PRC in June 1994 and
December 2007, respectively. He was admitted as a qualified lawyer in
the PRC in June 1987 and obtained the senior economist qualification
issued by the Sinopec Group in November 2004.

Mr. Wang joined the Group in February 2011 and prior to joining the
Group, he had over 12 years of extensive experience in the petrochemical
industry. He was recognized as a third level lawyer in April 1990 by the
China National Petroleum Corporation (4 Bl f i XA &4 A 7)) where he
worked. In January 1996, Mr. Wang joined China Petroleum Engineering
Construction Corporation, a company whose principal business is building
oil and gas infrastructures and undertook various positions including
contracts administrator, senior officer of the debt recovery department
and deputy manager of the projects department. In May 2001, he joined
Sinopec International Petroleum Exploration and Production Corporation
(“SIPC”), a company whose principal business is in overseas oil and
gas investment and operations, as the deputy manager of the legal
department. From November 2004 to December 2008, he served as the
vice president of the SIPC’s subsidiaries in Kazakhstan and as the deputy
general manager of the SIPC’s subsidiaries in Syria from January 2009 to
October 2010.

Mr. YANG Lu (% #%), aged 32, is an Executive Director. He is primarily
responsible for the management of the import, export and domestic
trading business of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive
Director in September 2018.

Mr. Yang Lu graduated with a bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering
from the Washington University in St. Louis, the United States in May
2012. He obtained the fund management qualification from the Asset
Management Association of China in June 2015.
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Mr. Yang Lu joined the Group in November 2013. Prior to joining the
Group, he was a junior consultant at Roland Berger Management
Consultants (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (BB BB OCEER( L8 ERAF) a
global strategy consulting firm, from September 2012 to September 2013,
and from October 2013 to November 2014, he worked in the marketing
department of Beijing Automic. Mr. Yang Lu has been the chairman’s
assistant of Hong Kong Risun since November 2013 and worked in the
market research department as deputy manager of Risun Marketing Co.
Ltd. (JBF5 & 35 B R 2 &) (previously named as Beijing Risun Hongye
Chemicals Co., Ltd.) from December 2014 to May 2016. He then worked
in Beijing Risun Fund Management Co., Ltd. (1t R/BFSEEEIEBR A F)),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Xuyang Holding, between June 2016 and
September 2018, first as deputy general manager and subsequently as
general manager. Since September 2018, he was the general manager of
Risun Marketing (JBF5 % §#).

Mr. Yang Lu is the son of Mr. Yang.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. KANG Woon ( EE JE ), aged 60, is an Independent Non-executive
Director and also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. He was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director between November
2011 to September 2015 and re-appointed in September 2018.

Mr. Kang obtained a doctorate of jurisprudence from the University of
Texas in Austin, Texas, the United States in May 1990. He has been
an attorney-at-law of the Supreme Court of the State of New York since
March 1991, and a member of the Law Society of England and Wales
since May 1998.

Mr. Kang served as a supervisor from May 2004 to June 2007 and was
an independent non-executive director of Anhui Conch Cement Company
Limited (Z#USIZ/)ERD BR2AF]), a company principally engaged in
cement products manufacturing dually listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock codes: 914 and
600585, respectively), between October 1997 and May 2004 as well as
between June 2007 and May 2013. Mr. Kang was also an independent
non-executive director of China Yurun Food Group Limited (FF B/ E &
TEBBRRAF]), a company whose principal business is manufacturing
meat products and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1068), from April 2005 to January 2010.
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Mr. YU Kwok Kuen Harry (5 Bl # ), aged 53, is an Independent Non-
executive Director and also the chairman of the Audit Committee and
member of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. He
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director in September
2018.

Mr. Yu received his diploma in accountancy from Morrison Hill Technical
Institute in Hong Kong in 1991 and master’s degree in business
administration from Manchester Business School in the United Kingdom
through distance learning in 2000. Mr. Yu is a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Yu is also a Certified Public
Accountant in the Macau Special Administrative Region.

Mr. Yu joined KPMG, an international accounting firm in October 1991
and was a partner of KPMG from July 2002 to June 2011.

Mr. Yu also serves as an independent non-executive director at Impro
Precision Industries Limited, a manufacturer of high-precision, high-
complexity and mission-critical casting and machined components and
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1286) since April 2019.

Mr. WANG Yinping (E£35|3F), aged 62, is an Independent Nonexecutive
Director and also a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
in September 2018.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in law from Renmin University
of China (FEI AR KXZ) in Beijing, the PRC in July 1985 and a master’s
degree in business administration from the China Europe International
Business School (FFEXEIBE T &4 ke) in Shanghai, the PRC in November
2004.
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Mr. Wang has extensive experience in corporate management. He joined
China National Chemical Import & Export Corporation (#F Bl T3 H O 42
A7) (now known as Sinochem Group Co., Ltd. (FEIFR{LEBAR A F))
("Sinochem"), a conglomerate offering exploration and production of
oil and gas, energy, agriculture, chemical, real estate and financial
services, in March 1988 and held various senior positions between March
1988 and March 2014 in Sinochem and its subsidiaries ("Sinochem
Group"), including the deputy general manager of the Hainan branch of
Sinochem, the general manager of the Pudong branch of Sinochem, the
deputy general manager of China Foreign Economic and Trade Trust
Company Limited (R BI$19MEEE 5 (Z5EHR 2 7)) a company principally
engaged in microfinance, industrial finance, capital market and wealth
management, the general manager of the human resource department
of Sinochem Group, the vice president of Sinochem Group, the general
manager of Sinochem International Trading Company Limited (now
known as Sinochem International Corporation (fF /b BB (35 A% ) B9 B R
A A])), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600500) and principally engaged in the chemical and rubber business,
the chairman of the China Foreign Economic and Trade Trust Company
Limited and the chairman of the Sinochem Lantian Co., Ltd. (fF{b & X
EBBRAR]), a company principally engaged in research, production and
sale of fluorine chemicals.

Mr. Wang also served as chairman of the board of Zhejiang Int'l Group
Co., Ltd. (/T HEFEE R M B R A7), a company that produces and
sells pharmaceutical and Chinese medicine health products in China
and listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000411) from
December 2010 to March 2014. From January 2015 to December 2016,
Mr. Wang was an executive director of China Pioneer Pharma Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1345) and a comprehensive marketing, promotion and channel
management service provider dedicated to imported pharmaceutical
products and medical devices in the PRC, and was re-designated to
serve as a non-executive director from December 2016 to December
2019. Mr. Wang was an independent non-executive director of Yida
China Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 3639) from December 2016 to March 2023.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LI Qinghua (ZE %), aged 59, has been vice president of the Group
since June 2015. He is primarily responsible for the overall management
of the Dingzhou, Xingtai and Sulawesi Production Bases. He graduated
from the Anhui Economic Management Cadre Institute (224575 % 12 # 51
Z0t) in Hefei, the PRC in July 1987 with a diploma in industrial enterprise
management and obtained a master’s degree in economics from the
Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China
(R ER) in Beijing, the PRC in July 2001. He obtained a senior
economist qualification from the Title Reform Leading Group Office of
Hebei Province (F/1L& BB E B/ NEIFA E) in November 1999.

Mr. Li joined the Group in November 2004 as a deputy general manager
of Xingtai Risun Trading. He has approximately 28 years of corporate
management experience. Prior to joining the Group, he undertook several
positions at Hebei Changzheng Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
(AL RAL/AE RS BBR A 7)), an automobile manufacturer, from July 1983
to October 2004, including director of the special cars factory from May
1993 to June 1998, deputy director and director of the general factory
from June 1998 to September 2002 and deputy general manager of
Hebei Changzheng Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd. from September
2002 to October 2004.

Mr. JIA Yunshan ( E & U ), aged 55, has been vice president of the
Group since December 2004. He is primarily responsible for the financing
and cash management of the Group. In July 1990, he completed a
program in financial accounting from Hebei Materials Institute (Fdb47E&
1) (now known as Hebei Economy Management School (7] 4t 4% /7 &
EER)) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC. In July 2003, he completed a master-
level training program in business administration at Hebei University of
Economics and Business (JAI1LAE & R E2) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC.

Mr. Jia has approximately 27 years of experience in financing and
cash management. Mr. Jia has been employed by the Group since the
establishment of Xingtai Risun Trading in May 1995. He has held various
management positions in the Group, including financial manager and
deputy general manager of Xingtai Risun Trading from May 1995 to
November 2004. He has been a director of Beijing Automic Technology
Co., Ltd. since September 2012.

Mr. Jia passed away on March 31, 2023.
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Mr. ZHANG Jianguo (3RZE]), aged 55, has been vice president of the
Group since February 2021. He is primarily responsible for management
of the Group’s strategic investments, production and engineering. He
graduated from the Daging Petroleum Institute ( X B A A £ B2 ) (now
known as the Northeast Petroleum University (31t 0 A£2)) in Daging,
the PRC in July 1988. He obtained a master degree in organic chemicals
from the Daging Petroleum Institute in Daging, the PRC in April 1994
and a doctor degree in chemical technique from the China University of
Petroleum (FF B/ i A £) in Beijing the PRC in July 2009, respectively.
He obtained the professor of engineering (2% = 4 TI2AT) awarded by
the Zhejiang Province Human Resources and Social Security Department
(T E AN ERMEE{REEE) in December 2017.

Mr. Zhang has approximately 34 years of experience in the petrochemical
and chemicals industry. He joined the Group in February 2021. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Zhang was the director of refinery factory of Daging
Petrochemical Company (X B 1t 2 &) from September 1988 to June
2005. He was also deputy general manager and director of safety of
Guangxi Petrochemical Co. Ltd. (EF8/A{L2AF]) of PetroChina Company
Limited (R EIAMARARRD B R A F) from June 2005 to February 2016.
He was also the executive deputy commander and vice president of
Zhejiang Petrochemical Co., Ltd. (#/LAH{E TH R A7) from February
2016 to January 2021.

Mr. HO Pui Lam Joseph (1f 5 £ ), aged 42, is the company secretary
of the Company. He is responsible for the management of corporate
governance and company secretarial matters, participation in the making
of material business decisions and development of the business strategy.
He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in business administration from the
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in December 2002. He has been a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since May 2018.

Mr. Ho has approximately 19 years of auditing, financial and company
secretarial experience. He joined the Group in September 2017. Prior to
joining the Group, he was an audit manager at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
from September 2002 to November 2009. He also served as the financial
controller and company secretary of Renheng Enterprise Holdings
Limited, a company principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
tobacco machinery products in the PRC and listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3628), from June 2010 to August 2017.
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The Board hereby presents their report together with the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022 to the
Shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Operating Environment and Prospects

Please refer to “Management Discussion and Analysis — Overview” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Business Review” in this annual
report for details.

Laws, Regulatory and Compliance Matters

The businesses of the Group of production and sale of coke, coking
and refined chemicals (including hydrogen energy products), operation
management services rendered to other coke and/or chemicals
enterprises together with the trading of coal, coke and refined chemical
products are subject to extensive law and regulations by the PRC
government in terms of production, sale, operation, transportation, energy
efficiency, safety and environmental protection etc.

During the Reporting Period, the law and regulations are further affected
by as followings:

(1) Improving the industrial concentration of key industries through
mergers and reorganizations by leading independent coke
enterprises;

(2) Implementation of plans to tackle “striving to peak carbon dioxide
emissions before 2030 and achieving carbon neutrality before
20607,

(3) Management for energy consumption in order to reduce the energy
consumption to a more reasonable and effective energy structure;

(4) Reasonable capacity utilization level,

(5)  Strictly implementation of the requirements of “determining coke
with steel” and “determining production with coal”.

Directors have confirmed that during the Reporting Period, the Group
had complied with the applicable laws and regulations in all material
respects, and did not have any incidents of material non-compliance, and
had obtained all relevant permits, approval documents, qualifications,
authorizations and approvals upon examination material to our business
operations.

Significant Subsequent Events

Up to the date of this annual report, the Group has no material
subsequent events after December 31, 2022.

2022 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited

ExgBltMRRREZEREEREE2022
F12A31 AL FEMEGREMHRE

FBOE
RERBNRDE

FEF2HAFRIEEENH RO —
BRI EREN®mEAMN —EBLE] -

wE - EENMAREA

AEBAEERBERR  BEMBACTE
m(BRIERER)WER  MEMER
R/ TERRENESERRYE - A
MR - ERIBACTIERNES  RE
= HEEE Bl ERRE 2Rk
RERES T AT BEBANEZEREA
FRHYHIHD o

RIERA - EZRERZBIUTHEENE —

s
(1) BUMEREECLEEANER 12
BERTRELETE

(2) B S HBE F R 20304 i &
FlIEE - B HFER2060E T B IR
Ml

(3) HERBFRETERE B LRERHE
o EREREBEAEBR

(4) AEWEENMAKE

(6) BRMITIASERIRIAREEINE

EEO®ER RNREHAR - ARECKHAAE
EXTHETFBEMARER - WELMA
BRTEREN  BAKEZERECDIEH
EGEEMSBEZNMAAMITA - #
X BIE - BAERER -

BRHREIR

BEEAFRBE - AEBIWE2022F 12 431
BEMEASEEE -



Report of the Board of Directors (Co tin

ued)
EEgWE(E

Relationship with Employees

The Group recruits new employees based on specific job requirements,
our resources and needs from time to time. The Group provides technical
as well as operational training for our employees and the Group has
tailored specific courses for our management personnel in order to build
a competent team.

As of December 31, 2022, the Group had 7,434 full-time employees (2021:
7,678). Most of the Group’s senior management members and employees
are based in Beijing and Hebei province.

The Group enters into a standard employment contract with each of the
full-time employees. Compensation for the employees includes basic
wages, variable wages, bonuses and other benefits. For the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2022, staff costs of the Group amounted to
RMB1,097.7 million and RMB995.5 million respectively.

The Company’s remuneration policy is set out by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of the employees’ merit, qualifications
and competence. The emoluments of the Directors are set by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to among others, salaries
paid by comparable companies as well as time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions of the Group.

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration and
there were no emoluments paid by the Group to any of the directors as
an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office.

The Group has adopted the Share Option Scheme to motivate and reward
its Directors and eligible employees. For further details, please refer to the
section headed “Report of the Board of Directors — Share Option Scheme”
of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not experienced any
interruptions to the operations caused by major labor disputes and there
were no complaints or claims from our employees which had a material
adverse effect on our business. The Directors believe that the Group have
a good relationship with our employees. During the Reporting Period,
the Group had no major labor disputes which might produce significant
impact of the normal business and operation of the Group.
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Relationship with Customers

The Group sells the coke primarily to customers in the iron and steel
industry in the PRC, and export a portion to overseas customers. The
Group sells the refined chemicals primarily to manufacturers and traders
in the chemical industry in the PRC, and export a small portion to
customers overseas. The end customers may purchase directly from the
Group or purchase through their affiliated trading arms. The customers
for trading business are primarily companies in the iron and steel, non-
ferrous, coking and chemical industries. During the Reporting Period, the
Group did not adopt any distributorship business models in selling the
products.

The Group maintains long-term cooperative relationships with the major
customers. Some of them have maintained business relationships with
the Group for more than five years, of which the customer with the longest
relationship has maintained a business relationship with us for 17 years.
Furthermore, we have entered into long-term framework agreements with
certain of our customers. The products supplied under such long-term
framework agreements mainly include coke, benzene, caprolactam and
methanol.

During the Reporting Period, the revenue attributable to the Group’s top
five largest customers was approximately RMB8,653.9 million, accounting
for 20.0% of the total revenue of the Group (2021: RMB8,726.1 million
or 22.7%). The revenue attributable to the single largest customer was
approximately RMB2,274.6 million, accounting for approximately 5.27%
of the total revenue of the Group (2021: RMB2,697.5 million or 7.0%).
The top five customers of the Group during the Reporting Period were
independent third parties, and none of our Directors, their associates or
any Shareholder (who, to the knowledge of our Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital as of December 31, 2022) had
any interest in any of the top five largest customers of the Group during
the Reporting Period.

B P H)BR

AEBIENTRMETENTPHES
& WAEINEP O AER - AEEF
EAFBRETITENEERRESHIHEER
METER  YERBINEPHO/NES A
ETER - KHFPREERAAEERE
HEBEMBEE ZHPVETRE - BHEK
BEFIZRME BB  REREIMT
X - RREHA - AEEEHEERR
WARERBER D HEBEN

AEERIBEFRFRAGERE - EF
By EAEERES T BARAFNERREE -
HPAERRAETPERBBMBRI7TEE
BRER o I BMEEBETEPFI LR
EZR M - R RRIIERGHREENE
mEIERFEER X CAERNTFE -

RBERAAN - RERNEB R AATFH KRGS
) AaANRES653.9FE T EAREB AU
#)20.0% (20214F : AR¥8,726.18 & LK
22.7%) - REE—HARFPHKR=HAEAR
22746 BETT  (EAEEBINEZEL5.27%
(20214 : AR¥26975BET7.0%) °
RBERAN - AEENFAREFHAEB L
F=FH - BRREHA - BEESE - ERE
ATSREMBRR(LEEAA - HE2022F
12 A31BEBE AR A% ERAE )R AL
BRI AARFHES T -

50 2022 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited




Report of the Board of Directors (Co tin

ued)
EEgWE(E

Relationship with Suppliers

The principal raw material used for the coke and coking chemical
production is coking coal. The Group mainly sources the coking coal from
external suppliers. The major types of coking coal the Group purchased
included hard coking coal, fat coal, gas coal, 1/3 coking coal and lean
coal. The Group purchased a large proportion of the coking coal from
suppliers in Shanxi Province and Hebei Province, China. If overseas
coking coal is more competitively priced than domestic coking coal,
the Group will source coking coal from countries such as Mongolia and
Australia.

For the production of the refined chemicals, the principal raw materials
are coking chemicals, which include crude benzene, coal tar and coke
oven gas. Coking chemicals are by-products in the coking process. The
Group mainly sources such raw materials externally from the suppliers of
the Group, but also sources a portion of such raw materials by utilizing
by-products from the coke production facilities at Dingzhou Production
Base and from CNC Risun Coking at Xingtai Production Base.

The Group generally enters into annual procurement arrangements
with key suppliers. These supply arrangements specify the indicative
quantities of raw materials that the Group plans to purchase in the
relevant period and are subject to separate purchase orders to confirm
delivery. The suppliers typically granted the Group credit terms of 30 to
90 days. Pursuant to these arrangements, the procurement department
purchases the required raw materials from suppliers in accordance with
production plans prepared by the production department. Generally,
purchase prices are based on prevailing market prices at the time of
delivery of the raw materials. The Group makes and implements our raw
material procurement plans in line with the production plans which are
primarily based on periodical review of customers’ orders in order to
reduce the Group’s exposure to market price fluctuations of raw materials.
The internal market analysis reports generated by the market department
also provide us with a basis for determining procurement prices.
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The Group has a broad base of suppliers and do not depend on any
single supplier. For instance, the Group procured coking coals from over
100 suppliers in the PRC and overseas during the Reporting Period. A
broad base of suppliers help enables the Group to procure a wide range
of quality raw materials at competitive prices. Though the Group did not
enter into any long-term agreements with our suppliers of raw materials,
the Group maintained long-term cooperative relationships with the key
suppliers. Some of them have maintained business relationships with the
Group for more than five years.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaged in the production business have
passed the ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System standard which
imposes detailed supplier selection and assessment procurement. The
selection and assessment of the suppliers include:

° the quality and specifications of the raw materials they offer;
° the size and locality of their operations; and
° their past transaction records and terms of trade with the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the purchases from the Group’s top
five suppliers were approximately RMB12,517.1 million, accounting
for approximately 32.21% of the cost of sales of the Group (2021:
RMB8,700.9 million or 26.3%). The purchases from the single largest
supplier were approximately RMB3,242.5 million, accounting for
approximately 8.34% of the cost of sales of the Group (2021: RMB4,315.1
million or 13.1%). The top five largest suppliers of the Group are
independent third parties, and none of Directors, their associates or any
Shareholder (to the knowledge of Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital as of December 31, 2022) had any interest in
any of the top five largest raw material and equipment suppliers during
the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not experience any material
shortages or delays in the supply of the raw materials, and the Group
does not foresee any material shortages or delays in the procurement of
raw materials in the future. The Group closely monitors the inventory levels
of the raw materials, and the Group adjusts the procurement volumes
accordingly in anticipation of periods in which the Group may encounter
raw material supply shortages or product demand increases.
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended December 31, 2022 are stated on pages 100 to 101 of the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income. The financial positions of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
December 31, 2022 are stated on pages 102 to 103 of the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position. The consolidated cash flows of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2022 are
stated on pages 106 to 108 of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow.

The discussion and analysis on the Group’s business performance and
financial position for the current year are stated under “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 16 to 38 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2022, the total issued share capital of the Company
was HK$44,241,260 divided into 4,424,126,000 shares of HK$0.1 each.
During the Reporting Period, the Company repurchased and cancelled
15,874,000 shares. Details of movements in the Company’s share capital
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 34 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company repurchased
and cancelled 15,874,000 shares of the Company at the total
consideration of approximately HK$55,993,000. Details of the share
repurchases by the Company are included in note 34 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. Save for the above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities
of the Company during the year ended December 31, 2022.

DEBENTURE ISSUED
The Group has not issued any debentures during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT TO ACQUIRE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company
is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on
a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

RESERVE

The details in relation to the changes in the reserve of the Company for
the current year are stated under Note 35 of the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The details in relation to the reserve available for distributing
to the Shareholders are stated under Note 35 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group’s property, plant and equipment consist mainly of machinery
and equipment. The Group purchased machinery and equipment mainly
with cash from operations and debt financing from banks and other
financial institutions. Machinery and equipment are primarily the various
types of machineries and equipment at the Group’s production site at
the seven production bases in China, including Xingtai Production Base,
Dingzhou Production Base, Tangshan Production Base, Cangzhou
Production Base, Huhhot Production base, Yuncheng Production Base
and Dongming Production Base together with the overseas production
base in Indonesia.

As of December 31, 2022, our property, plant and equipment amounted
to approximately RMB22,168.4 million, with a year-to-year growth of
33.5%. This was mainly because of the addition of RMB6,714.5 million in
property, plant and equipment and partially offset by the depreciation of
RMB1,194.6 million.
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DIVIDENDS AND DIVIDEND POLICY

After obtaining the shareholders’ approval at the 2021 annual general
meeting on May 27, 2022, the Company paid a final dividend of RMB6.3
cents per share (tax inclusive) for the year ended December 31, 2021 in
cash to shareholders whose names appeared on the register of members
of the Company on June 20, 2022, and the final dividend was fully paid
on June 30, 2022.

On August 26, 2022, the Board declared an interim dividend for 2022
of RMB12.3 cents per share (tax inclusive) in cash to its shareholders
whose names appeared on the register of member of the Company on
September 13, 2022. The interim dividend was fully paid on September
30, 2022.

The Board recommends the distribution of a final dividend for 2022 of
total amount of RMB39,817,000 (dividend amount of each ordinary share is
RMBO0.9 cents (tax inclusive)) for the year ended December 31, 2022 to all
Shareholders, details of which are set out in Note 14 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. Subject to the approval at the 2022 Annual General
Meeting, the final dividend will be distributed on or before June 30, 2023
to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of Shares of
the Company on June 16, 2023. Further announcements will be made by
the Company in due course regarding the details of the date of dividend
distribution and other specific arrangement.

The recommendation of payment and the amount of any future dividends
will be at the absolute discretion of the Board and the amount of any
dividends actually distributed to the Shareholders of the Company
will depend on the Group’s results of operations, cash flows, financial
condition, payments by the Group’s subsidiaries of cash dividends to
the Company, the future prospects and other factors that the Directors
consider important. The Group expects to distribute no less than 30% of
the Group’s annual distributable earnings in every subsequent year as
dividends.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS

The details in relation to the bank and other loans of the Company and
its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2022 are stated under Note 31 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations to charitable organizations in Hong Kong by the Group during
the year amounted to approximately HK$1,000,000 (2021: nil).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors currently consists of nine Directors, among whom,
six are Executive Directors and three are Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Directors have been appointed with a term of three years,

after which they may be re-elected.

The information regarding the Company’s Directors are set out as follows:

ESREREERE

EZEeRRMNARESAN - BEABNT
BEEN=RBUFATES - EENEHAR
=% [EREAEEE -

BRARREZNENEIINAT

Relationship with
Roles and Appointment Date of other Directors and
Name Age Position Responsibilities Date Joining the Group Senior Management
BAMESR
i3] i B BERBE ZERS MAREEHEH ERERENEE
Mr. Yang Xuegang 58 Executive Director, Overall management and November 8, 2007  May 12, 1995 Father of Mr. Yang Lu
chairman of the Board Business development of
and chief executive the Group
officer
BEREE HiTEF BTEIR FEINERERREBEE 2007511880 1995557128 BRELNLE
RO
Mr. Zhang Yingwei 51 Executive Director and Overall management of the  July 24, 2009 February 5, 1996 N/A
vice president of the Tangshan Production
Group Base and the Cangzhou
Production Base
FRELE YTEFRASERNY  BWAEEERANEEEE 200957724 199652458 TR
MEEEE
Mr. Han Qinliang 49 Executive Director and Management of the financial, May 18, 2011 March 1, 2004 N/A
vice president of the accounting and information
Group systems of the Group
by YTEFRASERAE  AEEONH @HRERE 2011F5A18H  2004F381H TR
FoER
Mr. Wang Fengshan 64 Executive Director and Management of procurement  September 29, March 1, 2004 N/A
vice president of the and sales of the Group 2018
Group
TALEE YMESFAKERRE  FEERERBEEER 2018598208 2004453A1H TER
Mr. Wang Nianping 60 Executive Director and Legal and risk management  September 29, February 22, 2011 N/A
vice president of the of the Group 2018
Group
IETRE YTEFRARERAE  AEEEERERER 201859A20R  201152/228 TR
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Relationship with
Roles and Appointment Date of other Directors and
Name Age Position Responsibilities Date Joining the Group Senior Management
BEMESR
#E R Bu BEREE ZERH MAREBHBH BREEENEE
Mr. Yang Lu 32 Executive Director Management of the import,  September 29, November 1, 2013 Son of Mr. Yang Xuegang
export and domestic 2018
trading business of our
Group
BREE YES EEREEMENAREN 2018597298  2013F1171R BERAENTET
Mr. Kang Woon 60 Independent Non-executive - Oversight of the compliance  September 29, November 11, 20110 N/A
Director and corporate governance 2018
matters of the Group and
provision of independent
advice to the Board
RERE BT8R EEASENARRAEER 201859A208  2011E11511R0 TR
SH UTREFEREEY
ER
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 53 Independent Non-executive  Same as above September 29, September 29, 2018 N/A
Director 2018
REETAE BUFHTES At 018F9F20E  2018F9A29A oy ilii
Mr. Wang Yinping 62 Independent Non-executive - Same as above September 29, September 29, 2018 N/A
Director 2018
FalTis BT8R Gis 2018597298 2018F9A29A TR
Note: st
(1) Texson is wholly-owned by Mr. Yang. Accordingly, Mr. Yang is deemed to be (1) RRHFBGTEZERE - Bt BEER

interested in the Shares held by Texson.
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The information regarding the Company’s senior management are set out

BAARRSRERENERSIINAT

as follows:
Relationship with
Roles and Appointment Date of other Directors and
Name Age Position Responsibilities Date Joining the Group Senior Management
BHMEER

#E 3 B AEREE ZERH MAREEN B BREEENBEE
Mr. Li Qinghua 59 Vice president of the Group  Overall management of the  June 8, 2015 November 1, 2004 N/A

Xingtai Production Base
FEERE REERSR MatEERNEEEE 201556888  2004F11A1AH THR
Mr. Jia Yunshan 55 Vice president of the Group  Financing and cash December 6, 2004  May 12, 1995 N/A

management of the Group
el REERIEH AEEMBARASEE 2004512868 1995F5A128 TR
Mr. Zhang Jianguo 55 Vice president of the Group  Management of the Group's ~ December 1,2022  February 18, 2021 N/A

strategic investments,

production and engineering
REELE REERS5 ERALENKERE 2020F 1218 202142R18R TER

EERIR
Mr. Ho Pui Lam Joseph 42 Company secretary Management of corporate September 29, September 20, 2017 N/A

governance and company 2018

secretarial matters,

participation in the making

of material business

decisions and development

of the business strategy
fAbRREE RERE ERQFABAAANES  2018F9F20R  201759A208 TR

B 2EEXFBRRR
S

Note: Mr. Jia Yunshan passed away on March 31, 20283.

The Company has received the confirmation of the independence
issued by the Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and is of the opinion that all Independent

Non-executive Directors are independent of the Company.
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CHANGES TO THE INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

According to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, during the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, there
is no change made to the information disclosed by Directors
pursuant to the provisions of paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, except that Mr. Wang Yinping ceased
to act as an independent non-executive director of Yida China Holdings
Limited in March 2023.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors of the Company has entered into a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries that may not be terminated by
the employer within one year without the payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The details of the remuneration of the Company’s Directors and five
highest paid individuals are stated under Note 12 in the Consolidated
Financial Statements. The range of remuneration of the senior
management are as follows:

ESENNET

RYE EARAIE13.51B(1) & - RSN R
BEAFEREAH - KRESIFEENR2023
FIABHEEET BIERAR A RIEIERT
BRI BEERBLETRAFE1351QKE
(@) E(e)R M (g) BN E B 2 BRI & 5
o

EERBEN
BEAAREERAAAREEANEAT

AR RETIN —F AR IEMBAINE
BORERERINRIBAL o

EEREREERENTMH

ARRIEFRABERFTALHHOFEH
WA B REMT12 - SREEBHFHH
HEMT :

Number of
Range of Remuneration (HK$) Senior Management
FENEEE(ET) SREEBAY
0-1,000,000 0
1,000,001-1,500,000 0
1,500,001-2,000,000 1
2,000,001-2,500,000 3
2,500,001-6,500,000 1

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (AND THEIR
CONNECTED ENTITIES) IN MATERIAL
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

None of the Directors (and their connected entities) is or was materially
interested, directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance entered into by the Company or the Controlling
Shareholders or any of their respective subsidiaries at any time during the
Reporting Period or subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors nor their associates
had any competing interests in such business that is in direct or indirect
competition with any of the Group’s business.

THE INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed below, as of December 31, 2022, none of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code as set out in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

EENHFEXRBNER

RREHR - MEETENEME A NEAE
EEKEESMEERBRENESTEET
A F L -

EEREREERRRG - MER
BRESNERRXR

BRI XXFTIEEEE SN - 22022 12A31H -
BEESERANAEERENAQAISKET
R EE (TR R EH RS EAEXVED)
B - BERGSEST - BEREES
)SZHJ%Eﬂbﬂﬁﬂ%xv*ﬁ%7&%8’h AHEARA
R AT SA R ¢ SIRIRE
&ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%%%3521%%5%5-%:% F¥g& o
Ml s AR » SRR LT AR A AT iR
EE%FE'J/,\%D@$ A R B X AT B (T A e Bk

NN
IRE °

Approximate
percentage of
the total issued
share capital in

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
EERRERITRA

EEHR 513, fEEtE ROEE RENBNEIE

Mr. Yang Xuegang” Interest in controlled corporation 3,124,478,928 (L) 70.60%

S EED AR

Mr. Yang Lu Beneficial interest 6,230,000 (L) 0.14%

B EE EREBA

Mr. Wang Feng Shan Beneficial interest 432,000 (L) 0.01%

ERI A& EREBA

Mr. Han Qinliang Beneficial interest 300,000 (L) 0.01%

BE RS EREBA

L) denotes long positions
Note:

(1) Texson is wholly-owned by Mr. Yang Xuegang. Accordingly, Mr. Yang
Xuegang is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Texson.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN
SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors of the Company, as of December 31,
2022, the following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives
of the Company) had interest and short positions in the Shares, or
underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be notified
to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein, or which had already been notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

FERRRBR G B ER

TARBEEA - B E2022F12H831H -
THAL(BELARRBEZESERIN RAE
NEl RN @RS F %ﬁﬁm%m%&
B EEBIEXVERE 2 R B3N B A S AR
RigEm KR - IREFE S MY iﬂmﬁll%sse
WA BN ZIEFT B E L M= foR B
EMEANE MR ATRER AR

Approximate
percentage of
the total issued
share capital in

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company

ERD B BITRE
EEHA 51, EntE KRB E BENBNEI L
Texson Beneficial interest 3,124,478,928 (L) 70.60%
TR AR Btk

(L)  denotes long positions

Note: Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2022, the Directors of the
Company were not aware of any person (other than the Directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interest or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be notified
to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein, or which had already been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On February 21, 2019 (the “Adoption Date”), the shareholders adopted
the Share Option Scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The terms of the
Share Option Scheme are in compliance with the provisions of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules.
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PURPOSE

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives to
Participants (as defined in the following paragraph) to contribute to the
Company and motivate them to higher levels of performance, and to
enable the Company to recruit high caliber employees and attract or
retain human resources that are valuable to the Group.

WHO MAY JOIN

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer options to subscribe for
such number of Shares in accordance with the terms set out in the Share
Option Scheme (“Options”) to any employee, executive director or non-
executive director (including independent non-executive director) of any
member of the Group (the “Participants”).

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme (the “Maximum
Number of Shares”) and any other Share Option Scheme of the Group
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
immediately upon completion of the Global Offering, however, that,
subject to compliance with the Listing Rules:

(i)  the Company may, at any time as the Board may think fit, seek
approval from our Shareholders to increase the Maximum Number
of Shares, up to a maximum of 10% of the Shares in issue at the
date of approval by our Shareholders in general meeting. Options
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other
scheme of the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled or
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
or any other scheme of the Company) shall not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the new Maximum Number of Shares. The
Company will send a circular containing the details and information
required under the Listing Rules to the Shareholders;

(i) the Company may seek separate approval from the Shareholders in
general meeting to permit the granting of Options which will result
in the number of Shares in respect of all Options granted exceeding
the then Maximum Number of Shares, provided that the Options
exceeding the then Maximum Number of Shares are granted
only to Participants specifically identified by the Company before
Shareholders’ approval is sought. The Company will send a circular
containing the details and information required under the Listing
Rules to the Shareholders;
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(iii)  the total maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other options granted and
yet to be exercised under another scheme of the Company will not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company if this will result in such limit
being exceeded.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to each Participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as of the date of grant.
Any further grant of Options in excess of the 1% limit will be separately
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting with such Participant
and his associates abstaining from voting. The Company will send a
circular to the Shareholders disclosing the identity of the Participant,
the number and terms of Options to be granted to the Participant, and
containing the details and information required under the Listing Rules.
The number and terms (including the subscription price) of Options to
be granted to the Participant must be fixed before the approval of the
Shareholders and the date of the Board meeting proposing the grant will
be taken as the offer date for the purpose of calculating the subscription
price of those Options.

Granting Options to Connected Persons

Where any offer of the grant of an Option is proposed to be made to
a director (other than an independent non-executive director), chief
executive or substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or any of their respective associates, the offer must be
approved by the Independent Non-executive Directors (excluding any
Independent Non-executive Director who is the grantee of an Option).
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Where any grant of Options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, would result in the Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all Options already granted and to be granted
(including Options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant: (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue; and (ii)
having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the Shares at
the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such further grant of
Options will be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and
approval by the Shareholders in general meeting at which all connected
persons of the Company must abstain from voting in favor at such general
meeting and/or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time. Any vote taken at the meeting to approve the
grant of such options will be taken as a poll.

Performance Target and Conditions for Vesting

No performance targets are to be achieved before an Option can be
exercised.

Subscription Price

The price per Share at which a grantee may subscribe for Shares on
the exercise of an Option shall be a price determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion and notified to a Participant, which shall be at least
the higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the relevant offer
date in respect of such Option;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the relevant offer date in
respect of such Options or where the Company has been listed for
less than five trading days, the new issue price shall be used as the
closing price; or

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.
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Life of the Share Option Scheme

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Share Option
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on the Adoption Date, i.e. February 20, 2029, after which period no further
Options will be offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any Options granted before that. Options granted before
that but not yet exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

Option Granted

No option has been granted under the Scheme during the Reporting
Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not enter into any contracts
in respect of the management and administration of all or any significant
portion of the business (except for such service contracts entered into
with the Group’s Directors and all employees) and there existed no such
contracts in respect of the management and administration of all or any
significant portion of the business (except for such service contracts
entered into with the Group’s Directors and all employees).

During the Reporting Period, the Group renewed the service contracts
with nine Directors of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into some transactions with connected persons of
the Company from time to time. In accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, such transactions have constituted Continuing Connected
Transactions of the Company.

As the original framework agreements and their related supplemental
agreements expired on December 31, 2021, the Company and
Xuyang Holding renewed the project services (“Project Services”)
framework agreement (the “Project Services Framework Agreement”)
and the integrated procurement (“Integrated Procurement”) framework
agreement (the “Integrated Procurement Framework Agreement”) for
continuing connected transactions for 2022 to 2024 on December
31, 2021. Furthermore, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “Informatization Services Framework Agreement”) for
continuing connected transaction with Xuyang Holding in relation to the
informatization services (“Informatization Services”) on the same day in
order to continue the Group’s pursuit of leadership in the digitalization of
the coking and chemical industries.
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Xuyang Holding is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Yang Xuegang, an
Executive Director and our Controlling Shareholder, and his spouse.
Pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules, Xuyang Holding is an
associate of Mr. Yang and a connected person of the Company.

Since each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits
ratio) for the Project Services Framework Agreement, the Integrated
Procurement Framework Agreement and the Informatization Services
Framework Agreement is less than 5%, the transactions under the
aforesaid three framework agreements constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company which are subject to the reporting, annual
review and announcement requirements but exempt from the circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Project Services Framework Agreement

The Company renewed the Project Services Framework Agreement on
December 31, 2021 with Xuyang Holding, pursuant to which Xuyang
Holding Group will provide project design, construction management and
general contracting services to the Group in relation to various initiatives
to upgrade the Group’s energy saving and environmental protection
capabilities and improve the efficiency and quality of the Group’s
existing large-scale production facilities in light of the adoption by the
relevant PRC government authorities of more stringent energy saving and
environmental protection requirements. Relevant members of Xuyang
Holding Group may enter into separate contracts with the Group to set out
specific terms and conditions of the relevant services in accordance with
the principles provided in the Project Services Framework Agreement.

The term of the Project Services Framework Agreement and any separate
contracts entered into is subject to mutual written consent of the Company
and Xuyang Holding and approval in accordance with applicable laws,
regulations and the Listing Rules. The Group is free to contract with
other independent third parties for the relevant services if Xuyang Group
is unable to provide such services or the terms that Xuyang Group
offers become less favorable to the Group than those offered by other
independent third parties.
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The Group conducts a public tender process for each project for which
we require project design, construction management and general
contracting services. Interested bidders would be selected on the bases
of the prices proposed, the technical specifications achievable, the
business model and background of the bidders, payment terms proposed
and the estimated delivery dates, and the bidder offering the best overall
terms would be awarded the project. As such, the fees for the services
provided by Xuyang Holding Group under the Project Services Framework
Agreement would be in line with the prices proposed by Xuyang Holding
Group in its submitted bids, and the Group would compare such bids
with the bids submitted by other independent third parties.

The amounts of fees charged by Xuyang Holding Group with respect
to the Project Services for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMB261,705,000 (tax-exclusive).

Integrated Procurement Framework Agreement

The Company renewed the Integrated Procurement Framework
Agreement on December 31, 2021 with Xuyang Holding, pursuant
to which Xuyang Holding Group shall provide the Group with water
purification chemicals and thermal coal for power and heat generation
together with steel products, building materials and catalysts according
to the Group’s operational requirements and development strategies as
well as the market conditions in accordance with the principles set out in
the Chemicals Procurement Framework Agreement.

The term of the Integrated Procurement Framework Agreements and
any separate contracts entered into is subject to mutual written consent
of the Company and Xuyang Holding and approval in accordance with
applicable laws, regulations and the Listing Rules. The Group is free to
contract with other independent third parties for the relevant services if
Xuyang Holding Group is unable to provide such services or the terms
that Xuyang Holding Group offers become less favorable to the Group
than those offered by other independent third parties.

The amount of fees charged by Xuyang Holding Group with respect to
the integrated procurement for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMB262,059,000 (tax-exclusive).
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Informatization Services Framework Agreement

The Company entered into Informatization Services Framework Agreement
on December 31, 2021 with Xuyang Holding, pursuant to which Xuyang
Holding Group shall provide the Group with related information system
building services such as the construction of, among other things, smart
logistics systems, safety and environmental protection management
platforms and big screens of command centers in the course of its daily
production and operation in accordance with the principles set out in the
Informatization Services Framework Agreement.

The term of the Informatization Services Framework Agreements and
any separate contracts entered into is subject to mutual written consent
of the Company and Xuyang Holding and approval in accordance with
applicable laws, regulations and the Listing Rules. The Group is free to
contract with other independent third parties for the relevant services if
Xuyang Holding Group is unable to provide such services or the terms
that Xuyang Holding Group offers become less favorable to the Group
than those offered by other independent third parties.

The amount of fees charged by Xuyang Holding Group with respect to
the informatization services for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMB45,521,000 (tax-exclusive).

Confirmation by the Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the aforementioned continuing connected transactions and confirmed

that the transactions have been conducted:

(a) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) in accordance with relevant agreement governing the relevant
transactions, on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Confirmation by the Auditor

The auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, has issued a
letter to the Board, confirming that for the year ended December 31, 2022,
in respect of the aforementioned continuing connected transactions,
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that:

1. the transactions have not been approved by the Board of Directors;

2. the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements; and

3. the amount of each of the transactions has exceeded its annual cap
mentioned above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Note 38 to the Consolidated Financial Statements discloses the related
party transactions of the Company in accordance with IFRS. The
transactions disclosed therein between the Company and the following
parties constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules: Mr.
Yang Xuegang, Ms. Lu Xiaomei, Texson and the entities controlled by Mr.
Yang Xuegang. During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied
with the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On February 20, 2019, the Controlling Shareholders have entered into
a Deed of Non-competition, pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders agreed that, except for the supply of coal as described
above, (i) he or she or it will not engage in, participate in or assist others
to engage or participate in any business that competes or is likely to
compete, directly or indirectly, with our business within the PRC, Hong
Kong or any part of the world in which any member of the Group operates,
and will procure its subsidiaries (where applicable) not to engage in any
business that competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
our business (the “Competing Businesses”) in the PRC, Hong Kong or
any part of the world in which any member of the Group operates; and
(ii) he or she or it will inform us of any new business opportunities of the
Competing Businesses, and use his or her or its best efforts to procure
such opportunities be made available to us.
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Each of the Controlling Shareholders have also undertaken in the Deed of
Non-competition that during the term of such agreement, he or she or it
will not, and will procure its subsidiaries (where applicable) not to:

o directly or indirectly engage in or participate in, or assist others
to engage in or participate in, any Competing Businesses in
any form (including but not limited to investments, mergers and
acquisitions, joint ventures, cooperation agreements, partnerships,
contractual arrangements or purchases of shares of listed or private
companies) within the PRC, Hong Kong or any part of the world in
which any member of the Group operates;

° assist any entity other than the Group to engage in any Competing
Businesses within the PRC, Hong Kong or any part of the world in
which any member of the Group operates; or

° engage in any Competing Businesses (directly or indirectly) in any
manner.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company are responsible
for examining, reviewing, considering and determining whether to adopt
and accept the new business opportunities referred to the Company by
the Controlling Shareholders.

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed that they complied with the
Deed of Non-competition during the Reporting Period. The independent
non-executive Directors of the Company have examined and reviewed the
implementation of the Deed of Non-competition and have confirmed that,
during the Reporting Period, the Controlling Shareholders fully complied
with the deed and there had no violation of the deed.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.22 OF THE LISTING  #R#5 £/ BI85 13.22 4k 1F H #Y #
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In accordance with the requirements of Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules,
the followings were the details of financial assistance given to affiliated
companies of the Group and guarantees given for facilities granted to
affiliated companies exceeded 8% under the assets ratio defined under
Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules as at December 31, 2022.

The Group’s

Guarantees for facilities

equity interestin  Loans and Advances Interestrate  Committed capital granted to the affiliated
Name of affiliated company affiliated company 1o affiliated company perannum injection company Notes
ARERDSHELE  RTDSER AUSHELR
BELALH fEhEE  DANERRER FRE AREE HEMELNER i3
Hohhot Ristn China Gas Energy Limited"” %% - - - RMB3,164.20 million 1
(“Risun China Gas")
WA ER TR RERAR 5% - - - AR¥3 1642088 1
([1ar=A )
PT. De Tian Coking Co., Ltd. 24%  USD43.82 million 6% - USD58.12 million 2,5
(*De Tian Coking") (equivalent o (equivalent o
RMB306.74 million) RMBA406.84 milion)
EREIL(EIR)RHAR (ERE(L ) A% WIASET(ESH 8% - BIREXLESR 25
AR%306.74BET) ARB40684EET)
Risun Wei Shan New Energy (Indonesia) 51%  USD83.04 million 6%  USD53.47 million USD280.08 million 3,5
Company Limited (‘Risun Wei Shan") (equivalent o (equivalent o (equivalent o
RMBS81.28 million) RMB374.29 million) RMB1,960.56 million)
B ELARaER (E) AR AR 5%  BIMEBETURERAR 6% SIATAEETUESH  008EEET(AER 35
(& e 581,285 E7) ARE420BET)  ARE196056BETT)
PT. KinXiang New Energy Technologies 20%  USD39.13 million 6%orSOFR - - 4,5
Indonesia (“KinXiang New Energy”)*! (equivalent to (12 months) + 300BP%
RMB273.91 million)
MeerHRNRAREEAA 0% VBEEXTUESHAR  6%ddAAGERY - - 45
(&R B213915E) BREATE
([SOFRJ)+300/E=%
Total  RMB1,161.93 million RMB374.29 million RMBS,531.60 million
G ARE1161938ET ARE37T49BET ARH5531 6088
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Notes:

In accordance with the articles of association of Risun China Gas, the
Group shall be entitled to appoint two of the five directors while the financial
decisions of Risun China Gas in relation to financing and dividend require
the unanimous consent of all the shareholders. As such, notwithstanding
that 55% of the equity interests in Risun China Gas is held by the Company,
Risun China Gas is considered as a joint venture of the Group.

The Group has provided various guarantees to Risun China Gas in a total
guaranteed amount of RMB3,164.20 million as at December 31, 2022. The
terms of the underlying guaranteed financing facilities range from 1 year to
5 years, and the respective guaranteed periods typically range from two to
three years from the expiry date of the performance period of the respective
financing facilities. Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
November 17, 2021, November 19, 2021, January 23, 2022, July 4, 2022,
December 28, 2022 and January 18, 2023 together with the Company’s
circular dated January 19, 2023 for details.

The Group invested in De Tian Coking in 2021, and pursuant to the
Cooperation and Investment Agreement dated June 30, 2021 in relation
to the establishment of De Tian Coking, the Group has injected USD52.96
million to the share capital of De Tian Coking, and shall provide guarantees
and/or shareholder loans of no more than USD285 million to De Tian
Coking for project financing purposes. Please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated June 30, 2021 and November 12, 2021 and circular
dated December 24, 2021 for details.

The Group invested in Risun Wei Shan in 2021, and pursuant to the Joint
Venture Agreement dated July 15, 2021 in relation to the establishment of
Risun Wei Shan, the Group has injected USD128.52 million to the share
capital of Risun Wei Shan, and shall provide guarantees and/or shareholder
loans of no more than USD538 million to Risun Wei Shan for project financing
purposes. Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated July 15,
2021 and November 12, 2021 and circular dated December 24, 2021 for
details.

The Group invested in KinXiang New Energy in 2021, and pursuant to the
Joint Venture Agreement dated July 16, 2021 in relation to the establishment
of KinXiang New Energy, the Group has injected USD43.6 million to the
share capital of KinXiang New Energy, and shall provide guarantees and/or
shareholder loans of no more than USD84 million to KinXiang New Energy for
project financing purposes. Please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated November 12, 2021 and circular dated December 24, 2021 for details.

The loans and advances to KinXiang New Energy of USD39.13 million have
taken into account the shareholder’s loan of USD21.57 million bearing an
interest rate calculated based on the Secured Overnight Financing Rate
(“SOFR”) (12 months) plus 300BP on the drawdown date, which was granted
to KinXiang New Energy on November 10, 2022 but has not been drawn
down as at December 31, 2022.

The exchange rate between USD and Renminbi for the calculation in this
table is at USD 1: RMB7.
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Pursuant to Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, a combined statement of
financial position of those affiliated companies with financial assistance
and guarantees given by the Group and the Group’s attributable interests
in those affiliated companies as at December 31, 2022 are set out as
follows:

B FTHRAE13.2218 - NEEBL THE
& B AR R BB E A 102022412 A 31
AZEHPBHRAREANEERIGZEEB
NEIZEREFT

Combined statement of

Group’s attributable

financial position interests

EOBEMRR R AEBELER

RMB million RMB million

AREEETT AREEET

Non-current assets JEMENEE 3,160.7 1,738.4
Current assets MEEE 2,365.8 1,301.2
Current liabilities REBE 3,331.4 1,832.3
Total assets less current liabilities BEERIEEE 2,195.1 1,207.3
Non-current liabilities FRBBE 1,497 4 823.6
Net assets AEFE 697.7 383.7

The combined statement of financial position of the affiliated companies
was prepared by combining their statements of financial position, after
making adjustments to conform with the Group’s significant accounting
policies and re-grouping into significant classification in the statement of
financial position, as at December 31, 2022.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Details of the retirement and employee benefits plans of the Group are set
out under Note 37 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Please refer to “Corporate Governance Report — Compliance of the Code”
in this annual report for details.

PUBLIC FLOAT

When it applied for the listing of its Shares, the Company applied to the
Stock Exchange, and the Stock Exchange has granted the Company a
waiver that the minimum public float requirement under Rule 8.08(1) of
the Hong Kong Listing Rules be reduced and the minimum percentage
of the Shares from time to time held by the public to be the higher of (i)
22.1%, the percentage of Shares to be held by the public immediately
after the completion of the global offering (assuming the over-allotment
option is not exercised); and (ii) such percentage of Shares to be held by
the public after the exercise of the over-allotment option, namely, 23.8%.
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Based on the Company’s publicly available information and to the best of
the Directors’ knowledge, as of the Latest Practicable Date, the number of
Shares in public hands were not less than 23.8% of the total issued share
capital of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period and as of the latest practicable date, the
Company (including but not limited to) had purchased and maintained
a group liability insurance for the Directors of the Company and its
associated companies (as defined for such term under the Companies
Ordinance).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee under the Board of Directors has reviewed the
Consolidated Financial Statements as for the year ended December 31,
2022 prepared in accordance with IFRS.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants is appointed
as the auditor for the Consolidated Financial Statements as for the year
ended December 31, 2022 prepared in accordance with IFRS. Such
Consolidated Financial Statements prepared in accordance with IFRS as
stated herein this annual report have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants and a standard unqualified audit
report has been issued.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, there was no change in the
auditor of the Company.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire at the forthcoming AGM and being
eligible offer themselves for reappointment.

By Order of the Board
Yang Xuegang
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 30, 2023
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The Board of Directors has hereby submitted its Corporate Governance
Report during the Reporting Period to the Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE OF THE CODE

The Company focuses on maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance for purposes of enhancing the value for the Shareholders
and protecting their interests. The Company has adopted such provisions
of the Code as stated in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
and Corporate Governance Report provided in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Company has established and perfected the corporate
governance structure in accordance with the Listing Rules and the
Code and has set up a series of corporate governance system. During
the Reporting Period, the Company has been observing all mandatory
provisions of the code as stipulated in the Corporate Governance Code
except the provision of C.2.1 of Part B of the Code (please refer to below
for detailed explanation).

The Board of Directors will continue to examine and review, from time
to time, the Company’s corporate governance practices and operation
in order to meet the relevant provisions under the Listing Rules and to
protect the Shareholders’ interests.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS CONDUCTED BY
DIRECTORS AND THE RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as provided in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”), taking the Model Code against which the
Directors of the Company may conduct securities transactions.

Upon specific enquiry conducted by the Company, all the Directors
have confirmed that during the Reporting Period, they have been fully
observing the Model Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS EES
Board of Directors o
(a) Composition of Board of Directors (a) EEEHER

The Board comprises nine Directors, including six Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Directors have been appointed with a term of three years, subject to
retirement by rotation requirements under the Articles of Association
of the Company.

The Company has at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors (representing at least one-third of the Board), and among
whom, at least one Independent Non-executive Director must
possess professional qualifications or accounting knowledge
or professional knowledge related to finance management in
compliance with the provisions of the Listing Rules. Moreover, after
taking into consideration of the factors regarding the evaluation
of the independence of the independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the written
confirmation of all Independent Non-executive Directors, the Board
of Directors believes that all Independent Non-executive Directors
are independent individuals.
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The Board of Directors of the Company comprises the following:

RAREFGHEKMT

Name Age Sex  Position Appointment Date
i3] Fe MR B ZERHE

Mr. Yang Xuegang 58 M Executive Director, chairman of the Board and chief executive officer November 8, 2007
ZE b 2 WOTEE BFSERERITBER 200711 A8H

Mr. Zhang Yingwei 51 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group July 24, 2009
REELE 2 WOTEERASEEI R 2009F7 A24H

Mr. Han Qinliang 49 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group May 18, 2011
BESELE = WOTEERASEEI R 201145181

Mr. Wang Fengshan 64 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group September 29, 2018
FRILESE £ WOTEERASEEI R 201859 H29H

Mr. Wang Nianping 60 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group September 29, 2018
FEFEE £ WOTEERASEE R 201859 H29H

Mr. Yang Lu 32 M Executive Director September 29, 2018
D)ot £ WITES 201859 A 29H

Mr. Kang Woon 60 M Independent Non-executive Director September 29, 2018
FBEE 3 BIFTESR 201859 A 29H

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 53 M Independent Non-executive Director September 29, 2018
REREEE 3 BUFHTESR 201859 A 29H

Mr. Wang Yinping 62 M Independent Non-executive Director September 29, 2018
F5IFEE 3 BIFTESR 201859 A 29H

The Directors may, at the Company’s expense, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances. The Company
will provide separate independent professional advice to Directors
upon request to assist the Directors to discharge their duties to the
Company.

Before each Board meeting, the senior management will provide
relevant information pertaining to matters to be brought before the
Board for decision as well as reports relating to the operational and
financial performance of the Group. Where any Director requires
more information than is supplied by the senior management, each
Director has the right to separately and independently communicate
with the Company’s senior management to make further enquiries.

The Company is of the opinion that the composition of the
Company’s Board of Directors (including the number and proportion
of independent non-executive Directors), the Directors’ access to
information and resources, the Director nomination process and the
implementation of the Board diversity policy ensure that the Board
has access to independent views and opinions.
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(b) Job Duties and Authority of the Board of Directors (b) ESSIHHERBE
The Board of Directors shall be accountable to the Shareholders EESHRRATTABRERAREAS
and have the duty to report to the General Meeting. The Board WEIE - EE2AFAMARERE -
of Directors is responsible for convening general meetings, HITRERGORER  REAREE
implementing the resolutions of the General Meeting, determining B EIRRERR  GIEFEVRES
the operational plan and investment proposals of the Company, FE - FHRIER B8FYRAR - BR
setting up the annual financial budget proposal, final accounts, s B R REMER - WREAR
profit distribution proposal, proposal for increase or decrease of ANREIREFIK  RTEEXEERE - B
capital and others, deciding on the establishment of the Company’s BREREMSREEEABNEZFX
management authority, determining the appointment or dismissal RHET - HIEAARERBTIERGE &
of chief executive officer, chief financial officer and other senior AEESEEMLZEENNIEH
management officers, formulating the basic management system
of the Company and determining the establishment of the special
committees of the Board of Directors.

(c) Job Duties and Authority of the Senior Management (c) SAEEEBEIFBERRE

The senior management is responsible for the specific
implementation of the resolutions of the Board of Directors and of
the management of the Company’s daily business, which includes
formulating (i) the Company’s operating plan and investment
proposal, (ii) the plan of establishing the internal management
authority, (iii) the basic management system of the Company and (iv)
the Company’s specific regulations.
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Meetings of Board of Directors and Members EEEERNMKE
During the Reporting Period, the Company convened a total of nine Board RWERR - ARRlaHERNRESTESE
meetings and one general meeting. The attendance of the meetings by Eh—RREARE  EFHEEHRBERED
the Directors is as follows: U
Board meetings General meeting
S REAE
Number of Number of
meetings Number of Times of meeting Number of
should meetings  Attendance attendance should meetings  Attendance
Name Position attend attended rate by alternate attend attended rate
ELEEE  EhLEEE ZRME  ELREE  BhHEEE

#e By RE R )22 R RE RE fir) 22
Mr. Yang Xuegang Executive Director 9 9 100% - 1 1 100%
BEEEL BES
Mr. Zhang Yingwei Executive Director 9 9 100% - 1 1 100%
RRERE BES
Mr. Han Qinliang Executive Director 9 9 100% - 1 1 100%
by i BES
Mr. Wang Fengshan  Executive Director 9 9 100% - 1 - 0%
TRLEE #TES
Mr. Wang Nianping Executive Director 9 9 100% - 1 1 100%
TETRE HiTgs
Mr. Yang Lu Executive Director 9 9 100% - 1 1 100%
Bkt HiTEs
Mr. Kang Woon Independent Non- 9 9 100% - 1 1 100%

executive Director
RELE BUFHTES
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry Independent Non- 9 9 100% - 1 1 100%

executive Director
REREE BIFHTES
Mr. Wang Yinping Independent Non- 9 9 100% - 1 1 100%

executive Director
ECIRS i BiHTES
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Yang is the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company.
In accordance with code provision C.2.1 of Part B of the Corporate
Governance Code as provided in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the
roles of the chairman and chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be held by the same person. The Board of Directors has
noticed that there was deviation from such code provision. However,
with extensive experience in the coke, coking chemicals and refined
chemicals industries, Mr. Yang is responsible for the overall management
and business development, the operations of our subsidiaries and their
corresponding production facilities and human resources of the Group
and has been instrumental to our growth and business expansion since
our establishment in 1995. The Board considers that vesting the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer in the same person is beneficial
to the management of the Group. The balance of power and authority
is ensured by the operation of the senior management and the Board,
which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals. The Board
currently comprises six Executive Directors (including Mr. Yang) and
three Independent Non-executive Directors and therefore has a strong
independence element in its composition.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Directors have been appointed for a term of three years,
after which they may be re-elected. At each general meeting, one third
of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.

The Directors have the power to appoint any person as a Director either
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing
Board. Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first annual general meeting of members after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election. The procedures and process of appointment and
re-election of directors are laid down in the Articles of Association. The
Nomination Committee shall be responsible for nominating new Directors
and then submitting such nomination to the Board of Directors for review
and consideration.
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A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the Company
before the expiration of his period of office (but without prejudice to any
claim which such Director may have for damages for any breach of any
contract between him and the Company) and member of the Company
may by ordinary resolution appoint another in his place. Unless otherwise
determined by the Company in general meeting, the number of Directors
shall not be less than two. There is no maximum number of Directors.

Training and Continuing Development of Directors

During the Reporting Period, the Directors of the Company actively
participated in seminars on the obligations and responsibilities required
to be fulfilled for being the directors of a listed company in Hong Kong,
as well as the obligations for the listing compliance of a listed company
in relation to the continuous professional developments in the following
manner:

RRBEE BT AR RS EHRER
MBS (LB TEEZESHERELR
ﬁﬁ%&ﬁé%ﬁﬁ&ﬁhﬁi?%%ﬂ)
MARBBERABALBRERZIS B
Aimﬁﬁ%ﬁO%#$ AIRBRAE L
FERE - BAEFABTELORMA - &
SABIWELER

=R LRHER

RBEHA - ARREFHEB2EEREE
LT RAREFABITHEGRBENL T
ARERBEERERZ EMERBEBHOH
g 2EFHEBOT

Type of continuous professional
development programmes

Name Position (Note)

HA B FEEEBRAEER (1)

Mr. Yang Xuegang Executive Director 2

HBEMEEL WITES

Mr. Zhang Yingwei Executive Director 2

REERLE WITES

Mr. Han Qinliang Executive Director 2

BE LS WITES

Mr. Wang Fengshan Executive Director 2

FRILEE WITES

Mr. Wang Nianping Executive Director 2

FEFEE WITES

Mr. Yang Lu Executive Director 2

HE L WITES

Mr. Kang Woon Independent Non-executive Director 1&2

EER s BIYIERITES

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry Independent Non-executive Director 1&2

REIESE L B IERITES

Mr. Wang Yinping Independent Non-executive Director 1&2

EEIFEE B IEITES

Notes: BFE -

1. Attending seminars/courses for development of professional skills and 1. 2MBREREERERAZOHTS R
knowledge. 2o

2. Reading materials in relation to regular update to statutory requirements, 2. BEAETHENEEER - EHRAIR

listing rules and other relevant topics related to listed company.
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Company Secretary and His Training

Mr. Ho Pui Lam Joseph acts as the company secretary and is responsible
for overseeing the Group’s financial and accounting operations and
internal controls, and provides financial and business advice to the Board
and senior management of the Group. Mr. Ho shall report significant
events to the chairman. The profile of Mr. Ho is stated in the section
of “Profiles of the Directors and Senior Management” of this Report.
During the Reporting Period, Mr. Ho undertook more than 15 hours of
professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

Meetings of the Board of Directors

Pursuant to the code provision C.5.1 of Part B of the Corporate
Governance Code, the Board should meet regularly and Board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. Agenda of board meetings are presented to the Directors
for comments and approval. The Board of Directors is provided with
adequate, timely and reliable information about the Group’s business and
developments before each board meeting at which the Directors actively
participate and hold informed discussions. A notice of regular board
meeting shall be given to all directors at least 14 days before the meeting
is convened pursuant to the requirements of the Code, and such notice
shall state the date, time and venue of the meeting to be convened and
the format to be adopted of such meeting. Other interim board meetings
have reasonable notices be delivered to all Directors.

In accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules, the Company shall
publish an announcement at least 7 clear business days in advance
of the date fixed for any board meeting at which the declaration,
recommendation or payment of a dividend is expected to be decided or
at which any announcement of the profits or losses for any year, half-year,
quarter-year or other period is to be approved for publication.

The quorum for a board meeting shall be the presence of two Directors.
Directors may participate in any meeting of the Board by means of a
conference telephone or other communications equipment through
which all persons participating in the meeting can communicate with
each other simultaneously and instantaneously and, for the purpose of
counting a quorum, such participation shall constitute presence at a
meeting as if those participating were present in person. The company
secretary is responsible for preparing and safekeeping the minutes of the
board meetings and ensuring that the Directors can enquire about such
minutes.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has strictly complied, and will
continue to comply, with the provisions in relation to the meetings of the
Board of Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors delegates certain responsibilities to various
committees. In accordance with relevant laws, regulations and the Articles
of Association of the Company, it has formed three committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee in accordance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and has expressly stated the
scope of job duties of such committee in writing. The Audit Committee
consists of three members, namely Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry, Mr. Kang
Woon and Mr. Wang Yinping. All members of the Audit Committee are
Independent Non- executive Directors. Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in ensuring that
the Company has an effective financial reporting, risk management and
internal control system in compliance with the Listing Rules, overseeing
the integrity of the financial statements of the Company, selecting, and
assessing the independence and qualifications of, the Company’s
external auditor, as well as ensuring effective communication between the
Directors and the internal and external auditors of the Company.

As for the selection, appointment and dismissal of external auditors or
resignation of auditors, the Board and the Audit Committee have reached
a consensus.

During the Reporting Period, five meetings were held by the Audit
Committee. The attendance record of each member of the Audit
Committee is set out below:

EEEREE

EEeRELZEgRTKBETETRE -
BEREREAR  APIRARRAEERAL
BPRI=BZEE  HHABEXREES
FHZEeRieRLEE -

8>

BEZRE

ARFERIE ERAIEI21 15K TR
AR R EAFARTBRESS -
GEETHREEROBERE - BRE8
EM=AKBAN  HRIBRERELE B
BRARTIITEE - BREBRHARKE
WABIFNTES - REBELRBRE
BEER-

ERZEENENABIEFERERAAR
M HRE - BREIE R AR RRE R
BRAETHRA EERNRBMBEHRRNT
B EEBEARBMIMNERBEN L R EE
TERER - WHEREEEARR] ARSI
FERZBRED 2 R B BB -

RSN BEIHPE - ZERBRAEE
MEEEE EFGHRBRZEGCEN—
HER -

RBEHAN - ERREEGCRITRAREE -
BERZBeERKENHFELCHEEIIMT

Name of committee members

Number of meetings attended/should attend

Attendance rate

EEERENER BHE BHEEERE HE R
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 5/5 100%
RERELEE

Mr. Kang Woon 5/5 100%
BRB%A

Mr. Wang Yinping 5/5 100%
FalFEE
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee:

1. assessed the independence and objectivity of external auditors;

2. advised the Board on re-appointment of external auditors;

3. reviewed the internal control and risk management systems of the
Company;

4. reviewed the audited annual results for the year ended December
31, 2021,

5. reviewed the unaudited interim results for the period ended June
30, 2022; and

6. reviewed the audit plan 2022.

In addition to attending meetings, members maintain close and effective
communication amongst themselves through channels such as e-mail
and electronic communications to ensure the discharge of their duties.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee in
accordance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, and has
expressly stated the scope of job duties of such committee in writing. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Kang
Woon, Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry and Mr. Wang Yinping. All members are
Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Kang Woon is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include establishing
and reviewing the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management and making recommendations
to the Board on employee benefit arrangements. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for determining the vesting of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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During the Reporting Period, one meeting was held by the Remuneration
Committee. The attendance record of each member of the Remuneration
Committee is set out below:

RIMEMA - FHEBREBRT— KR -
HMERGEAMRE L ERHRIIT

Name of committee members

Number of meetings attended/should attend

Attendance rate

EEEHENRE BHE BEEESIAY M=
Mr. Kang Woon 11 100%
EB%AE

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 11 100%
REREELE

Mr. Wang Yinping 11 100%
FalIFRE

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee:

1. reviewed the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
Senior Management’s remuneration; and

2. review and approve the remuneration proposals of individual
executive Directors and Senior Management, as well as non-
executive Directors for the Reporting Period, with reference to
the corporate goals and objectives formulated by the Board of
Directors.

In addition to attending meetings, members maintain close and effective
communication amongst themselves through channels such as e-mail
and electronic communications to ensure the discharge of their duties.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, and has expressly stated the scope of job duties of
such committee in writing. The Nomination Committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. Yang Xuegang, Mr. Kang Woon and Mr. Yu Kwok
Kuen Harry. Except for Mr. Yang who is an executive Director, all other
members are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Yang is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, assessing
the independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors to
determine their eligibility, and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, re-election and removal of Directors and succession
planning for Directors.
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During the Reporting Period, one meeting was held by the Nomination R|EHRN - BELZEGERT—REZE -
Committee. The attendance record of each member of the Nomination RELZESTENEMNHELEIHINNT -
Committee is set out below:

Name of committee members Number of meetings attended/should attend Attendance rate

ZESRENRE BHE EHEEERE HER

Mr. Yang Xuegang 11 100%

HERERE

Mr. Kang Woon 11 100%

BB AE

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry i7Al 100%

REIRES &

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee: RMEEHRN - REEEE

1. reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills, 1. EHESSRERE  AEREXN(EE
knowledge and experience) of the Board; FEE - AR R AEER)

2. made recommendations to the Board as to nomination of Directors 2. PRRBFRGHEFEERREELFE
for re-election at the AGM; mEFFREER

3. assessed the independence of Independent Non-executive 3. FHMEBMIERITES 2B
Directors;

4. considered and assess the performance of the Board and 4. BERVESEFEMNREVHBALA
consider such performance against the boards of comparable REFEEE6HERE &k
companies; and

5. monitor the implementation of, and review, the board diversity 5 EEARRTESELBERZHTIL
policy of the Company. FEHAEBCR -

In addition to attending meetings, members maintain close and effective BRHEFa@EN  KEMEBAEHREFBEM

communication amongst themselves through channels such as e-mail ERBRFBIRBICEBAEREBEITER

and electronic communications to ensure the discharge of their duties. o
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD
DIVERSITY POLICY

In order to enhance the quality of the performance of the Board and
to support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development, we have adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”). Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, we
seek to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors when selecting candidates to the Board, including but not
limited to gender, skills, age, professional experience, knowledge,
cultural and education background, ethnicity and length of service.
Appointments will ultimately be based on merit and the contributions the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board believes that such
merit-based appointments will best enable the Company to service our
Shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure,
number of members, and composition of the Board of Directors. In
addition, the Committee makes recommendations to the Board relating to
the size and structure of the Board of Directors based on the Company’s
strategic plans, business operations, asset size and shareholding
structure. The Committee also discusses and reviews the selection
standard, the nomination and appointment process of relevant Directors,
and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors. In identifying
candidates, the Company solicits candidates through recruitment
agencies, referrals by existing directors, and recommendation by
shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association. The candidates will be approved by the Board of Directors.

The Board Diversity Policy needs to be followed when the Nomination
Committee makes recommendations on the candidates or when the
Board of Directors makes nomination. The Nomination Committee is
responsible for monitoring the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy and reviewing it at the appropriate time to ensure its effectiveness.
The Nomination Committee will discuss any amendments when necessary
and make recommendations to the Board of Directors for final approval.
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The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including in
overall management and strategic development, sales and marketing,
finance and accounting, law, consulting and corporate governance,
as well as experience in the coke industry. Our Directors also obtained
degrees in various majors including business administration, coal
chemistry, metallurgical engineering, industrial economy administration,
accounting, statistics, law, international trade and chemical engineering.
The Company has three Independent Non-executive Directors with
different industry backgrounds, representing one-third of the members
of the Board. Furthermore, the Board has a wide range of age, ranging
from 32 years old to 64 years old. Out of the nine Directors, only Mr. Yang
Xuegang and Mr. Yang Lu are related. Taking into account our existing
business model and specific needs as well as the different backgrounds
and abilities of our Directors, the composition of the Board satisfies the
Board Diversity Policy, despite the lack of gender diversity.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the diversity of the
Board. The Nomination Committee monitored the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy, and reviewed the Board Diversity Policy from time
to time to ensure its continued effectiveness. The Nomination Committee
also included in our annual corporate governance report a summary of
the Board Diversity Policy together with measurable objectives set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, the progress made towards
achieving those objectives, as well as the Board's composition from a
diversity perspective.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board of Directors and concluded that the Company
had met the diversification requirements with regard to skills, age,
professional experience, knowledge, cultural and education background,
ethnicity and length of service. When making the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors in the future, the Nomination Committee will
nominate new Directors pursuant to the requirements of the Board
Diversity Policy to achieve the objective of diversity in Board members.
Subject to the compliance with the Listing Rules, the Board will take
opportunity to appoint at least one female member over time when
selecting and making recommendation on suitable candidates for Board
appointments by no later than end of 2024.

The Board would ensure that appropriate balance of gender diversity is
achieved with the ultimate goal of bringing the Board to gender parity.
For male and female employees who have the experience, skills and
knowledge required for the Group’s operations and businesses, the
Group will provide them with comprehensive trainings, including but not
limited to operations, management, accounting, finance, compliance, etc.
The Board believes that the above strategies will allow the Board to select
capable female employees to form part of the Board in the future, which
will further promote the gender diversity of the Board of Directors in the
long run.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to ensure that the
Company maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
our Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets at all times. In
order to ensure the internal control operate effectively, the Company has
adopted a series of internal control policies, procedures and programmes
designed to provide reasonable assurance for achieving objectives
including effective and efficient operations, reliable financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The Board reviews
the risk management and internal controls annually. Highlights of the
Company’s internal control system include the following:

(a) Code of conduct. Our code of conduct explicitly communicates
to each employee our values, acceptable criteria for decision-
making and our ground rules for behavior.

(b) Internal audit. Our internal audit team regularly monitors key
controls and procedures in order to assure our management
and the Board of Directors that the internal control system is
functioning as intended. The Audit Committee is responsible for
supervising our internal audit function.

(c) Compliance with Listing Rules. Our various policies aim to ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules, including but not limited to
aspects related to corporate governance, connected transactions
and securities transactions by the Directors.

(d) Enhanced internal control procedures to prevent the recurrence of
non-compliance incidents. The Company also adopted a number
of enhanced internal control procedures to prevent the recurrence
of noncompliance incidents.

We have established a set of risk management policies and measures to
identify, evaluate and manage risks arising from our operations. Our risk
management process starts with identifying the major risks associated
with our corporate strategy, goals and objectives. Each of our operating
departments is responsible for identifying and analyzing risks associated
with its function, maintaining a comprehensive risk register, preparing
risk mitigation plans, measuring effectiveness of such risk mitigation
plans and reporting the status of risk management. Our audit personnel,
the Audit Committee, and ultimately the Board of Directors supervise the
implementation of our risk management policy at the corporate level by
bringing together each operating department, such as quality control,
research and development and sales, to collaborate on risk issues among
different functions.
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The Board of Directors and the senior management are accountable for
the overall responsibility in respect of monitoring the implementation of
internal control and risk management procedures and other measures in
the Group. The Company’s risk management and internal control system
aims at managing but not eliminating the risk for not being able to achieve
the business objective. Moreover, only reasonable but not absolute
guarantee is made for materially untrue statement or loss. The Board of
Directors will conduct an examination on the Company’s risk management
and internal control system once per year. The Board of Directors has
confirmed that it has examined the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control system as of December 31, 2022. The
Board believed that the Company'’s risk management and internal control
system is effective and sufficient. The Company’s risk management and
internal control system can effectively guide against such risks existing in
the operation.

We have appointed and renewed the appointment of external professional
advisors (including the auditor, legal or other advisors) for provision of
professional suggestions in respect of how we observe all applicable
related laws and regulations.

THE DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has not encountered with any significant and uncertain
events and circumstances that might produce significant doubts on the
Company’s capability of its continuous operation of business. The Board
of Directors has confirmed that it is responsible for the preparation of the
Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2022.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR

During the Reporting Period, the Company has appointed Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants, an international accounting firm,
to provide the Company with auditing service in accordance with IFRS
and the amounts of remuneration in connection to annual audit service
are RMB6.1 million. The responsibilities of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
to the Consolidated Financial Statements are set out on pages 94 to 99 of
this annual report.

Non-audit services provided to the Group during the year ended
December 31, 2022 of approximately RMB4.73 million represented the
fee for the assurance of the environmental, social and governance report
of the Company, the review of continuous connected transactions, the
relevant services of circular of major transaction and interim fee for review
of the unaudited interim financial statements.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders have the Right to Initiate and Convene the
General Meeting

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the shareholders shall be entitled to the following right: any
one or more shareholder of the Company holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
(2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21)
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group at a general
meeting. Proposals shall be sent to the Board or the company secretary
in writing to the company secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Room 2001, 20/F., Sino Plaza, No. 255
Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

Shareholders are Entitled to the Inquiry Right

Shareholders are entitled to make enquiries to the Board should by
sending written enquiries to the Company at its principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Room 2001, 20/F., Sino Plaza, No. 255
Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Company will deal
with all enquiries in a timely and appropriate manner.

IR ERHER
BREREERBLAFRRAS

RBARRBESBERAANGE - BRREE
BATHERN : EA—BXZBARABRRRN
R ERE AFBARRRMRRA(MERA
ARRRARE ERRER) AR +D 2
— REAKROARAESERARANE
BHEEEX  BREFSARBRFRIXK
g REAMERTEANMEMNSEE - ZX
GANBRAERERZM2)EARNET - i
EEeRENRERERR -+ —(21)AARE
MEBAE M EROALARERT
AATERAE  MEHERNALIRES
GREAMASMELEN — YA BMX&EH
ARARAREFEN

RIRAE LIR2ZENERF

AEEFERRNBERAEG LIREAAASE
BT RN REBHHEMNEE - B
BERANEESARNETTARAWER
h WARRMEREMHA  BFEARRF
ERETELRME MU RBERNFLES L
FT3E 2555k (Z M E 520182001 % o

BRZEBEMER

BRAAESSELEARRNERRRES

DEEWE - W BB BIRBEE LTS
2555 =M E 520122001 %E » AR AKE K
R OUBE H RIS -

2022 i
Al

RS




Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
rEREAWmE (B

92

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes that effective communications with its
Shareholders is essential to enhancement of the relationship with
investors and enhancement of investors’ understanding of the Company’s
business and strategies. The Company highly values Shareholders’
opinions and suggestions, and actively organizes and conducts various
activities related to the relationship with investors in order to keep the
communications with Shareholders, and to timely satisfy the reasonable
demands of all Shareholders.

To enhance effective communication, the Company maintains its website
at http://www.risun.com where latest information on the Company’s
business operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public
access.

The annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company will be held on
May 30, 2023. The notice of the AGM will be sent to shareholders at least
20 clear business days before the AGM.

The Company has reviewed the Shareholders’ communication policy and
believes that the Company has provided investors with multiple channels
for investors to understand the Group’s business and operations, as well
as channels for investors to express their opinions and comments. The
Company also actively responded to the feedback from investors. Based
on this, the Company believes that the Shareholders’ communication
policy implemented during the Reporting Period is sufficient and effective.

RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS

The Company believes that good relationship with investors may help
build more stable and consolidated shareholder base. As a result, since
the Listing, the Company has been and will be dedicated to maintaining
a higher degree of transparency, observing the Listing Rules and timely
providing investors with comprehensive and accurate information, and
sustainably performing the obligation of disclosing the information as a
listed company. The Company will strengthen its communications with
investors and let investors understand corporate strategies and business
operation by organizing road shows, participating in investors summit,
voluntary information disclosure and others.

The Company will continue to maintain open-up and effective investors
communication policies for purposes of timely providing investors with
the latest information on the Company’s business when the Company is in
compliance with the relevant regulatory provisions.
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ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the Reporting Period, there is no amendment to the Articles of
Association.

The Board of Directors has proposes certain amendments (the “Proposed
Amendments”) be made to the Articles of Association by way of adoption
of the amended and restated articles of association (the “Amended and
Restated Articles”) in substitution for and to the exclusion of the Articles
of Association, in order to, among other things, (i) bring the Articles of
Association in line with the Core Shareholder Protection Standards set
out in Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules; (ii) introduce provisions to allow
general meetings of the Company to be held as a hybrid or electronic
meeting; (iii) making house-keeping amendments to the Articles of
Association to clarify the existing practices of the Company and to reflect
certain updates in relation to the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands
(including under the Companies Act (As Revised) of the Cayman Islands)
and Listing Rules; and (iv) making consequential amendments in line
with the Proposed Amendments. Please refer to the announcement dated
March 31, 2023 and the circular dated April 26, 2023 of the Company
for details of the Proposed Amendments. Such amendments are to be
approved by the Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM by way of a
special resolution. The Amended and Restated Articles will be published
on both the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in due
course.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the
provisions of “Comply or Explain” stated in the Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Reporting Guide. Please refer to “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” for details.
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA RISUN GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Risun
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 100 to 258, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

ERETSEE(E)

Key audit matter

BRESE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNMEERRETSEE

Revenue recognition from contracts with customers

BEPAHWaHER

We identified revenue recognition from contracts with
customers attributable to the coke and coking chemicals
manufacturing segment as a key audit matter because
the amount and the increase in revenue are significant.
Furthermore, revenue from contracts with customers is a key
performance indicator of the Group and therefore there is a
high inherent risk of overstatement.

ERTERRMEICEREEDIBEENTFAOKE EE%
7% HHEREAFIE ARG EREEAEER - 1o -
PattamTy BERERBRERUEE - Fit - T‘Z—E@Eﬂ%
R HEERRE -

As disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognized revenue from contracts
with external customers attributable to the coke and
coking chemicals manufacturing segment amounting to
RMB16,368,438,000 for the year ended December 31, 2022,
and increased by RMB467,594,000 when compared with
that of prior year.

RS M EMAMT6MEE - EEERAEE2022F 12
ﬂ31EIJtEJ*EEf&&ﬂ:EuuEF’“BFEE’W\\*B%}EA
#lk s A AR % 16,368,438,0007T © EUBEFEEMARE
467,594,0007T °

Our audit procedures in relation to revenue recognition from
contracts with customers attributable to the coke and coking
chemicals manufacturing segment included:
EgEEREECERMEED BELNT P AR RTERD
nﬁif B

° Understanding the key controls relevant to our audit
on revenue recognition from contracts with customers;

. THRERMHEFANRSEERE T EREARRRIES

° Performing analytical procedures to assess the
reasonableness of the unit selling price, and compare
the quantity sales against the quantity production and
the quantity of freight charges;

. %ﬂﬁ ST TR B E B RS IR - WHHES ML

EEkEEEHETHLER

° Obtaining confirmations for the sales to the major
customers; and

o MYUTIBRPHIHEEDKE

° Checking, on a sample basis, the recorded
transactions by examining the underlying supporting
evidences such as receipt notes, final settlements,
delivery notes, and sales contracts.

J MEREMARRS  ZEBEEXHER(KEE

BRER IREBEERHESR)
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lam Kam Chiu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
March 30, 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 & ZE2022F12A831HIFFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
st ARKEFT AREFT
(Restated)
(45 Et)
Revenue Uz 6 43,139,449 39,370,054
Cost of sales and services $HE RARTER A (38,864,128) (33,839,436)
Gross profit ER 4,275,321 5,530,618
Other income E A 7 274,398 137,365
Other gains and losses E bl s & B8 8 (1,136) (95,632)
Impairment losses under expected TBHEEEEREXIET ZRE
credit loss model, net of reversal 518 - B EFER 9 87,755 (115,633)
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HRX (985,303) (942,110)
Administrative expenses TR (932,925) (973,848)
Profit from operations KRR 2,718,110 3,540,760
Finance costs BB A 10 (997,254) (904,931)
Share of results of associates DI E N EIEE 59,137 72,156
Share of results of joint ventures DIHEELEEE 423,490 490,269
Profit before taxation R AT 11 2,203,483 3,198,254
Income tax expense FrS R 13 (343,992) (601,840)
Profit for the year FERF 1,859,491 2,596,414
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 mEkzE
Item that may be reclassified HiZ ] fE BT 7 A2 B iy
subsequently to profit or l0ss: HE -
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINEEEMEN 58
translating foreign operations 29,852 9,387
Other comprehensive income FEEMEEKE
for the year 29,852 9,387
Total comprehensive income for FEZHWHAHE
the year 1,889,343 2,605,801
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 #ZE2022F12831HIEFE

2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
WiaE AR¥TFT AREFT
(Restated)
(#xEt)
Profit for the year attributable to: ERFEERR :
Owners of the Company KAEHEB A 1,855,122 2,613,689
Non-controlling interests Sl 4,369 (17,275)
1,859,491 2,596,414
Total comprehensive income forthe — FEGFEZHEUEEALE :
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company KAEIHEB A 1,884,974 2,623,076
Non-controlling interests ESuliig 4,369 (17,275)
1,889,343 2,605,801
Earnings per share (RMB) BREXBRALE) 15
Basic ER 0.42 0.61
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At December 31, 2022 12022512 H31H

2022 2021
20224 20214F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
st AR¥FT ARBTT
(Restated)
(#&&E )
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB K& 16 22,168,357 16,660,351
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 1,989,362 1,722,474
Goodwill (RS 18 232,435 232,435
Intangible assets B EE 19 764,124 847,108
Interests in associates ?5"\355%@ AR 20 688,207 393,421
Interests in joint ventures REETENER 21 3,207,426 1,778,744
Other long term receivables and Efth REFFEU SR B RIB
prepayments 22 723,515 1,929,960
Financial assets at fair value through BRAREFABENESREE
profit or loss (“FVTPL") 23 1,670,920 507,579
Deferred tax assets REFRTHEE 24 128,333 125,251
Restricted bank balances IR HIIRTTAEER 27 356,000 356,000
Bank deposits RITHER 28 672,000 -
Amounts due from related parties e AR 5 R 38(c) 113,093 80,810
32,713,772 24,634,133
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 25 3,221,154 2,189,078
Income tax prepayments TERETSH 20,109 22,644
Other receivables E At e Y R TE 26 4,607,036 3,605,522
Trade and bills receivables measured ? AAEFAREMEE K=
at fair value through other K 5 FEUGRIE K FE I R 4%
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) 26 861,432 951,378
Amounts due from related parties JiE Uk B 5 SR OE 38(c) 2,211,059 2,108,128
Financial assets at FVTPL RASEFABENEREE 23 65,820 89,647
Restricted bank balances SR BIERITAE R 27 1,023,563 900,073
Bank deposits RITER 28 178,010 -
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRBELEEY 28 1,200,669 2,280,914
13,388,852 12,147,384
Current liabilities REBAE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL RASEABENEHEAE 23 201 19
Trade and other payables f’f%&ﬁl’r@ﬁ%ﬁmlﬁ 29 9,463,968 5,283,894
Contract liabilities SHEE 30 2,011,202 2,252,747
Income tax payable Vﬁﬁﬁ ST 713,947 839,803
Bank and other loans HR1T R E M E K 31 12,624,241 8,209,846
Lease liabilities HEBE 32 49,331 71,208
Amounts due to related parties JIE < A 5 5R0E 38(c) 184,189 183,024
25,047,079 16,840,541

2022 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continue
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At December 31, 2022 722022912 A31H

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
KiaE AR¥FT AR BFr
(Restated)
(4 )
Net current liabilities REBAEFEE (11,658,227) (4,693,157)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 21,055,545 19,940,976
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank and other loans IRITREMER 31 7,604,432 5,376,834
Lease liabilities HEBRE 32 423,903 142,800
Deferred income RIEUWA 33 136,863 127,736
Deferred tax liabilities FELERIBEE 24 295,318 297,992
Long-term payables RHAFEARUE 36 - 2,901,000
8,460,516 8,846,362
NET ASSETS EEFE 12,595,029 11,094,614
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital [N 34 382,246 383,604
Reserves i 35 11,728,184 10,584,245
Total equity attributable to owners RATEE AREESZAE
of the company 12,110,430 10,967,849
Non-controlling interests FEIER 484,599 126,765
TOTAL EQUITY HRER 12,595,029 11,094,614

The consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 258 were F100E258E FTH i R REESTERN

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on March 30, 20233 A30 B /& MR HAT A
2023 and are signed on its behalf by: TRERES
Yang Xuegang Han Qinliang
BEM By
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
E3 EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 #ZE2022F12A31HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

BRAREARL
Foreign
currency Non-
Share Share Merger  Reserve Safety transaction Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve fund fund reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
Bk RGEE AERE  HEEE 22ES MMERRE  RBMEE  REEA f  FERER by 3
RMBOOO  RMBOOO ~ RMBUOO0  RMBOOO ~ RMBUOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0O — ARMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO
NEETT AREFT AREFT ARETr AREFT ARETr AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
(note34) — (note35)  (note3s)  (note35)  (note3s)  (note35)  (nofe 35)
(Widse)  (Wizs)  (Werm)  OWEs) (WEss) (BiE%)  (WEw)
Balance at R20211518
January 1,2021  BH(EEH)
(Audited) 354699 1377224 589869 772128 3,878 (27,498) - 5136453 8238748 144040 8382788
Adjustment #E(E31)
(note 3.1) - - - - - - - (17036)  (17,03) - (17.0%)
Balance at R02151518
January 1,201 £gH(EER)
(Restated) 354699 1377224 589,869 172,123 35,878 (27,498) - 5119417 8221712 144,040 8,365,752
Proft (loss) forthe R 47I(EE)
year (Restated)  (£Eil) - - - - - - - 2613689 2613689 (17275) 259,414
Other At2ERE
comprehensive
income - - - - - 9,387 - - 9,387 - 9,387
Net transfer to FEYERRES
safety fund - - - - 1,605 - - (1,605) - - -
Transfer toreseve  EBZHERS
fund - - - 395049 - - - (395049) - - -
Issue of new shares  E4THTR(Mi734)
(note 34) 28905 1,676,476 - - - - - - 1706381 - 1705381
Business NN ERRFEHT
combination iy
under common
control in 2021 - - (570,000) - - - - - (570,000) - (570,000)
Dividends REDRWiE14)
appropriation
(note 14) - - - - - - - (10123200 (1012320) - (1012320
Balance at 021 E12A31H
December3i,  fEA(HE()
2021 (Restated) 383604 3,053,700 19869 1,167,172 37,483 (18,111) - 6324132 10967849 126765 11,004,614
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
reEREER(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2022 EZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARUEEAEL
Foreign
currency Non-
Share Share Merger ~ Reserve Safety transaction Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve fund fund reserve reserve profits Total interests equity

Bk RGEE AERE  HEEE  22ES MMERRE  BMEE  REEA f  FERER by 3
RMBOOO ~ AMBOO0  RMBOOO ~ RMBOO0  RMBOO0  AMB0O0  RMBOOO  RMBO0O0  RMBOOO  AMBOO0  RMBOOO
NGEFT ARETr ARBEFT AREFT ARETL ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT
(note34)  (note35)  (note3s)  (note35)  (note3s)  (note35)  (nofe 35)

(Widse)  (Wizs)  (Warm)  WEm) (WEss) (%) (WEw)

Balance at HR0A1E12A31H

December 31, &

2021 383,604 3,053,700 19,869 1,167,172 37,483 (18,111) - 6,340,793 10,984,510 126,765 11,111,275
Adjustment #E(E31)

(note 3.1) - - - - - - - (6861)  (16661) - (16861)
Balance at R2022F1518

January 1,202 E#(EER)

(Restated) 383,604 3,053,700 19,869 1,167,172 37,483 (18,111) - 6,324,132 10,967,849 126,765 11,094,614
Poofitfor theyear  FE&H - - - - - - - 1855122 1,855,122 4369 1,859,491
Other At2ERE

comprehensive

income - - - - - 29,852 - - 29,852 - 29,852
Net transfer to FEYERRES

safety fund - - - - 1,854 - - (1,854) - - -
Transfertoreserve  BHRRERS

fund - - - 303,788 - - - (303,788) - - -
Repurchaseand R KRG

cancellatonof (#3234

shares (note 34) (1,358) (46,544 - - - - - - (47,902) - (47,902)
Capital FERERATE

contributions

from non-

controlling

shareholders - - - - - - 121,840 - 121,840 488,160 610,000

Disposal ofanon- ~ HE—F#2 4
wholly owned HEAR
subsiciary - - - - - - - - - (5,869) (5,869)

Acquisttion of W aRER
non-controlling
interests - - - - -

Dividends REDEHZ14)
appropriation
(note 14) - - - - - -

1% - TIB (128826)  (121699)

(823,459)  (823,459) - (823459)

Balance at HR2022F12A318
December 31, b
2022 382,246 3,007,156 19,869 1,470,960 39,337 11,741 128,968 7,050,158 12,110,430 484,599 12,595,029
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 & ZE2022F12A831HIFFE

2022 2021
2022F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKTFT AR TFT
(Restated)
(#x =)
Operating activities RETER
Profit before taxation (G aNznpiawl 2,203,483 3,198,254
Adjustments for: AT &IEFE
Finance costs EE=Vp N 997,254 904,931
Interest income B (160,620) (66,573)
Share of results of associates DL RN T EE (59,137) (72,156)
Share of results of joint ventures DA EDEER (423,490) (490,269)
Impairment losses under expected credit FEHIEEEIBEX T 2 EERE
loss model, net of reversal e EhEs (87,755) 115,633
Depreciation of property, plant and M - WEREETE
equipment 1,191,910 1,125,208
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 124,627 121,776
Amortization of intangible assets A EE 108,297 104,157
Impairment of property, plant and M - BRE REERE
equipment - 25,032
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME - EREEH (), K8
plant and equipment (4,219) 84,594
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFREEEM (415) (53,779)
Deferred revenue released to profit or BHEBEEMETERA
loss (12,761) (8,212)
Change in fair value of financial assets/ ~ EAMREF ABENeHMAE BE
liabilities at FVTPL NI EEE) (57,052) 97,699
Foreign exchange loss (R E = 91,400 1,777
Operating cash flows before movements 2B &S EBSHFIMNELHRLRE
in working capital 3,911,522 5,088,072
Increase in inventories FE#m (1,033,976) (218,432)
Increase in amounts due from related JREL BEHS: 7 SR IEIE N
parties (1,321,408) (521,915)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to  JE{HEEEE 5 FRIBHE 0, Ot
related parties 64,894 (14,251)
Increase in other receivables Bt MR IE I AN (477,420) (941,190)
Decrease in trade and bills receivables  ZAABEFAEMEEWEAENE S N
measured at FVTOCI A R I SRR R 117,373 34,015
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other ~ Z 5 M H M FRIAEE I, O )
payables 2,619,963 (41,218)
(Decrease)fincrease in contract liabilites & &I& &), &0 (241,545) 1,241,327
Increase in other long-term receivables  H b & B fEURGRIE & T FRIEIE I
and prepayments (2,626) (9,012)
Cash generated from operations KSR E 3,636,777 4,617,396
Income tax paid, net of tax refunded EASFTER - HIBRIETE (473,069) (411,666)
Net cash generated from operating REFHREBREFE
activities 3,163,708 4,205,730
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
mE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2022 EZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
WiaE AREFT AREFT
(Restated)
(#xEt)
Investing activities RETEE
Purchase of property, plant and BEME  WELEE
equipment (4,262,721) (3,429,989)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEMREFTSHRIA
plant and equipment 479 15,605
Purchase of right-of-use assets BEGAREEE (91,474) (220,535)
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use HEFREEEMSRIE
assets 74,091 191,765
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE (25,313) (20,517)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BERANE ABRNETE
BE (1,153,686) (526,904)
Loan to third parties ME=ZHREER - (8,922)
Repayment of loan to third parties ME=FEEEXK 58,709 34,000
Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary Y& —REHE QM 36 (2,901,000) (206,149)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets &R AN ET AR S &
at FVTPL BEMSHIE 81,942 36,693
Net cash inflow on disposal of HEMBARRRERAFE
subsidiaries 27,342 -
Interest received EFIE 131,191 66,573
Government grants received B UG EX A R T BN 25,167 55,998
Dividends received from a joint venture U —RA S ENRE 326,353 93,496
Dividends received from associates [EEGEH=VNS = o) ¢S 59,710 29,600
Placement of restricted bank balances FAZREERITER (4,168,279) (4,883,473)
Withdrawal of restricted bank balances  12EXSZ R HIER1T1F K 4,044,789 4,922,056
Placement of fixed deposits FAEHEFER (850,010) -
Deposits for other loans HEMERNES (101,691) -
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from  FEULEREE 5 5k BRI~ (38 0)
related parties 38(c) 584,031 (1,254,021)
Investments in joint ventures YREREKRE 21 (880,265) (14,644)
Investments in associates R NEIEE (162,356) (7,733)
Net cash inflow on disposal of a joint HE—HAELENRESRA
venture =L 2,358 -
Net cash used in investing activities REZHFMARSFE (9,180,633) (5,127,101)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
meBHenEx(E

For the year ended December 31, 2022 & ZE2022F12A831HIFFE

2022 2021
20224F 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
WiaE AR¥TFT AREFT
(Restated)
(#xEt)
Financing activities RESEE
Net proceeds from issue of shares AR EFTRTS IR S 58 - 1,705,381
Capital contribution from a non-controlling — % 3FHEEA AR R &9, &
shareholder 610,000 -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests WS IR AR AR (15,000) -
Dividend paid to shareholders BEEL ]SS e (823,459) (1,012,320)
Interest paid ERFLE (1,126,011) (1,015,483)
Repurchase and cancellation of shares 3§ B K iE 5% 1% (47,902) -
Proceeds from new bank and other loans #7877 &k Eth B FAT1S FUE 17,179,835 12,243,981
Repayment of bank and other loans EERITREMER (10,715,709) (9,322,157)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHESE (135,823) (33,745)
Increase in amounts due to related JE < ARG 7 FRIEIE AN
parties - 26,450
Business combination under common HEEG THRES O
control - (570,000)
Net cash from financing activities BETBELENBESEE 4,925,931 2,022,107
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and e RESEEYORD) Em
cash equivalents FE (1,090,994) 1,100,736
Cash and cash equivalents at the FENRSRRESEEY
beginning of the year 2,280,914 1,181,955
Effect of foreign exchange rate ERSENTE
changes 10,749 (1,777)
Cash and cash equivalents attheend HEFRBERBEESEEY
of the year 1,200,669 2,280,914
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N PR e

For the year ended December 31, 2022 EZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Risun Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The shares
of the Company are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
respective addresses of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are stated in the section headed
“Corporate Information” section to the annual report.

The ultimate holding company and immediate holding company of
the Company is Texson Limited (“Texson”, the “Ultimate Holding
Company”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI”), and ultimately controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang (the “Ultimate
Controlling Shareholder”).

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 44.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to the “Group”) are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At December 31, 2022, the Group had net current liabilities of
RMB11,658,227,000. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
are of the opinion that, taking into consideration the availability of
unconditional unutilized banking facilities of the Group amounting
to RMB7,566,696,000 at the report date, and the assumption that
approximately 50% of bank loans and other banking facilities at
December 31, 2022 will be successfully renewed upon maturity, the
Group has sufficient financial resources to meet in full its financial
obligation when they fall due for the next twelve months from the
date of the issuance of this consolidated financial statements.
Capital expenditure for business growth will only be taken place
when the Group obtained new sources of financing. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis.

—fpER

PEBSEBERAG (AR DIRE
MEHERAREF2E(1961F F 358
ER - RERE RBET) EF 2 RS
BRI BEREBR AR o NABRGH
EBBARSITERAE([HRA])E
R ET - ARAEMBREREREES
EEWIMN N FERIDAER]—

-

AR B SAAEB R R R BRI AR
AERKBRAR([FERRK] - [REE
BAR) ER-—RRNEBRZES
([EBELRS ) EMKZNRE - I
A5 S e 5 A ([ SA AR IR R ) S
i) o

MEARMNERERRMEL4 - AR
AINEKE AR (SR A EE DisaRM
BREAARE(TAREDZS - 8BA
RAEIDRLE AR -

REMBHRRNEREE

MR2022F 124318 » AEEREERE
THEAAREE11,658,227,0007T ° A
AEE(ES)RE  £EEAEER
WEAHEGGEABARITREAR
#7,566,696,0007C K AT A » BRER A
2022F 12 31 B #I50% MR TE R &
HARITRE R EAR SRV ELE - &N
EEEE R TV BERBEEMNERA
RAEMBHRATIEART @ AREIH
BENVHET EREEDSTRE
BRE - T EETHEERERNER
S e Bt - SREMBSRRIIRFEL
EEAERE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 #ZE2022F12A31HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 3. EAREITERIBHRSEEL

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING ([ BIFR B s 3 5 2E A )

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective TN 5 5 ) A 38U 2 BB BT Y

for the current year B B 75 i 5 2 A

In the current year, the Group has applied the following RAEE - AEBEERERGS H R

amendments to International Financial Reporting Standards KEXRERULTHREE S ERIESE

(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board g((EERerEREEE ) BEMEAR

(“IASB”) for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the 2022F1 A1 HABMASEE FEHHE

Group’s annual period beginning on January 1, 2022 for the o 1) A= U BB B S R A 2RI ([ BB B

preparation of the consolidated financial statements: THRE AR DEYEET

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework BB BmEER  HESERMEL

E3R(BITA)

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond HEHBREED 20216 A30REH T

30 June 2021 F16(EFTR) REBEBNESEE
et

Amendments to 1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before il 0% BERERE-HE
Intended Use F165 (BT K) FRAIM IS FUR

Amendments to 1AS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract il BEESH-BTae

FITR(EFIAR) B

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 BB BHRELEN  2018F 22020 FERR 8

(BETA) BlREER 2 RS0
Except as described below, the application of the amendments to BRRSCRTItE SN - AN FE B B 15
IFRSs and the Committee’s agenda decision in the current year WEEANNETREZEESEEATY
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions NEBERH KRBT FERI IR R
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the BN RZERE NS REMEERL
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements. mEBATE -

110 2022 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 #ZE2022F12831HIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

3.1

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before
Intended Use

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments specify that the costs
of any item that were produced while bringing an item of
property, plant and equipment to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management (such as samples produced when
testing whether the relevant property, plant and equipment
is functioning properly) and the proceeds from selling such
items should be recognised and measured in the profit or
loss in accordance with applicable standards. The cost of the
items are measured in accordance with IAS 2 Inventories.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group has
applied the new accounting policy retrospectively to property,
plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of January 1, 2021. The details of the impacts are
set out below. Comparative figures have been restated.

3.

& A

AR BIFR B FS 3 5 22 Al

(T BEFR B 5 3R 5 22 B 1) ()

POZREE E o Il A2 2 BRIE R B
FREAFS RS 2RI ()

3.1

FEREET RS ERE16
HME - BERRE-HER
BATNASRENE

AEBERAFERNE NRAZF
ER] ° WLIERTEARE T — F 71
E BEXRERECEEELRE
HISE iy 4t BH I R RE e B AR o (7))
RS E - RS SRR £
EMEm)  HEEMEmRIK
KAKHEFS - BIRRERRE
AETTIERE 8 - EmAIKA
EBRBIR Gt ERF 25/ 7
EJZHTE °

RIBBEG - AEBEASHE]
SETECRIBYE A Z= 1202141
A1Rsi & ERANmE -
WERELEBER - ZETEZ
FEEHNT c LRBEFELE
5l
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 #ZE2022F12A31HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 3. EAREITERIBHRSEEL
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING ([EIFR B 3R &5 2E R 1) (&)
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective Egzﬁigz%@ E?éliz&ﬁ%?ﬂﬁﬁ

for the current year (Continued) BRET s 22 RN (48 )

3.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 16 3.1 Eﬁ@@ﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁ«w$16
Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before SR ~Jﬁﬁl§&s§t‘[ﬁ—ﬁiﬁﬁ
Intended Use (Continued) BRAMFBRENSE(E)
Impacts of application of amendments to IFRSs on the JE S EIRE A1 7 3 & 2E RIS 5T A 41
consolidated financial statements HRENBHRENEE
The effects of the changes in accounting policy as a result M E R E T@E %ﬂfl%je%ﬁ#@
of application of amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and ¥/‘ @E&ﬁﬁl_ _%F/fﬁ?ﬂff//ﬂ?
Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use which were fﬁfﬁfﬂgﬁ'ﬂﬂgﬂf’;‘ ’ Mfﬁ%iiﬁg
applied retrospectively on the consolidated statement of profit fgif‘xﬂi B HEM ﬂﬁvj\ aE
or loss and other comprehensive income and earnings per B XAA M PERAL LSRR
share, are as follows: MEyREWT

2022 2021
2022F 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARH T ABR¥TIT

Impact on profit and total comprehensive B Fil o £ ETH 25 6 87 2
income for the period

Increase in revenue el - 939,643
Increase in costs of sale SHES R AN AN (976) (939,268)
Net (decrease)/increase in profit FREH OB D), G InFEEE
for the year (976) 375
Impact on profit and total LAFA LI F w1 R 2 E
comprehensive income for the Wi &
year attributable to:
— Owners of the Company —ARNEHEA A (976) 375
2022 2021
2022F 20214F
RMB RMB
AR AL
Impact on basic earnings per share FRBEA B FIR)ZE
Basic earnings per share before FARATFRERZF
adjustments 0.42 0.61
Net adjustments arising from change ~ BETEWE - BE K&K
in accounting policy in relation to A EHBEREBMES
determination of costs of property, EODEEEES

plant and equipment = _

Reported basic earnings per share BRE SR EF) 0.42 0.61
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 #ZE2022F12831HIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 3.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

3.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before
Intended Use (Continued)

Impacts of application of amendments to IFRSs on the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

The effects of the changes in accounting policy as a result
of application of amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use (“Amendments
to IAS 16”) which were applied retrospectively on the
consolidated statement of financial position as at the end of
the immediately preceding financial year are as follows:

FE RIS S 5T BARR B 75 3 5 22 A
(TIPSR RS 3R &5 2 R 1) (&)

A7 6 [ 98 fhll A 2 2 SEAE T
FREA SRS R ()

31 EAKEITEREIERE16
WX BERRE-HERA
BATNASRAEN S (H)

FE B BB B 4R 5 2 RY 15 AT K
HEHBRENZE (E)

RN ERBER S ERF 165D
X BERRE - FEHZLHH
Frig s REVER]T A (BIFR &5t 8
AIF165R (BRI AR)) » ABE R
BRESZ( - BYRAYHEER
L EM B EEREOERE B ER

RO EWT :
December 31,

2021 December 31,
(Originally 2021
stated) Adjustments (Restated)
20214F 20214
12A31H FEE 12H31H
(R5EFR5I) (fe&Eit)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AEETFT AEETFT
Property, plant and equipment #1% - Bi&E k&4 16,677,012 (16,661) 16,660,351
Reserves i 10,600,906 (16,661) 10,584,245

The effects of the changes in accounting policy as a result
of application of Amendments to IAS 16 which were applied
retrospectively on the consolidated statement of financial
position as at the beginning on the comparative period is as

R EABIR ST AR F 165 (185]
) UBEFBERELE(L - Bk
¥ LL B BRI IR MUAR & B IS AR 2R B9
FEMT

follows:
January 1, 2021
(Originally January 1, 2021
stated) Adjustments (Restated)
202141 A1H #AE 2021F1A1H
(R5EFR3)) (fEEit)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ABEBFT ARBFT
Property, plant and equipment #1% - Hi5E &4 11,123,326 (17,036) 11,106,290
Reserves {1 7,884,049 (17,036) 7,867,013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 #ZE2022F12A31HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 3. EAKEITTERERMEREER
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING ([EPREI IS REXER] ) (4])
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective 7N [5 58 1l A 20 2 BB BT Y
. + S =

for the current year (Continued) PR e 2RI (48 )

3.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 16 31 ERKBITERETERZE16
Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before BUE - BRERRKEBE-BEA
Intended Use (Continued) BRAIMNERIENEE(E)
Impacts of application of amendments to IFRSs on the JE B BE B 7 3R A5 2E RIS AT A &
consolidated financial statements (Continued) EMBHRENZE(E)

The effects of the changes in accounting policy as a result H R E A B & 5t R RIS 165k (8
of application of Amendments to IAS 16 which were applied AIARN(BRTAR) - AR E
retrospectively on the consolidated statement of cash flows, H8(b - BPRBEESEERN
are as follows: EROTZENT :
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHFT ARETTT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
(Decrease)/increase in profit FREFCRD), 1

for the year (976) 375
Increase in depreciation of property, — ¥1% BB R EITERL I

plant and equipment 976 -

Net increase in operating cash flows ~ &E&® KL ETHFHES
before movements in working capital  EE)ATAL & TEENIR S R F G0

and net cash from operating activities - 375
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFD
Purchases of property, plant and BAME - BB &R

equipment - (375)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 #ZE2022F12831HIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 17 (including the June
2020 and December 2021
Amendments to IFRS 17)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to I1AS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Insurance Contracts'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback®
Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current®

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants®

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined
. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024

3.

FE RIS S 5T BARR B 75 3 5 22 A
(TIPSR RS 3R &5 2 R 1) (&)

ERME R AR AR #E] B
FAHs s AR Bl S ELERT AR

AEEWER P A T BAERR
AR FTRT BB B 7 S S 2 R LB AT

/N

Bl B iE 2 BT
(820206 A K
2021512 AR BIR B 7 3
SRAF17HRETAR))

BB B SRS 2R
F10HLER
SR E285
CCHES)

BB BT AR 2 Al
F165 (BATAR)

RERHERIE 15
(fB7TA)

B g ERE 1%
(fB7TA)

B G ERE 15 R B
MHREENERRH
EY5ASCHES)

B & ER e
(fB7TA)

AR ERF 125
(B3I A)

REREA

REERERE
DEHAER
FLRANAE
HEHTA?

EREEMEE
afEe

YEIBE i0E)
AENE

M RFEAIER

SR fERTAER'

HE-RHEL
MEERARE
THRREST
BR'

! H2023F1 A1 B 2 & HBHFE

HR AR

2 WFEE A HIs 2 R m e F R R

R

3 B2024F 1 A1 Z AR EFE

HR AR

BB R
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 & ZE2022F12A831HIFFE

3.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below,
the Directors anticipate that the application of all other new
and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments
to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as
current or non-current, which:

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of
the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of
the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only if the entity
recognises the option separately as an equity instrument
applying IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

° specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at the
end of the reporting period. Specifically, the amendments
clarify that the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle the liability
within 12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020 Amendments
have been modified by the 2022 Amendments. The 2022
Amendments specify that only covenants with which an entity
is required to comply with on or before the end of the reporting
period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date. Covenants which are
required to comply with only after the reporting period do not affect
whether that right exists at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 EZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments
to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”) (Continued)

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities could become
repayable within twelve months after the reporting period, if
the entity classify liabilities arising from loan arrangements as
non-current when the entity’s right to defer settlement of those
liabilities is subject to the entity complying with covenants within
twelve months after the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of applying the
2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2024. The 2022 Amendments, together with the 2020
Amendments, are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2024, with early application permitted. If an
entity applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier period after the
issue of the 2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply the
2022 Amendments for that period.

As at December 31, 2022, the Group’s right to defer settlement
for bank loans of RMB452,090,000 are subject to compliance with
certain financial ratios within 12 months from the reporting date.
Such bank loans were classified as non-current as the Group has
no non-compliance as at December 31, 2022. Upon the application
of the 2022 Amendments, such borrowings will still be classified as
non-current as the covenants which the Group is required to comply
with only after the reporting period do not affect whether that right
exists at the end of the reporting date and such borrowing will still
be classified as non-current.

Except as disclosed above, the application of the 2020 and 2022
amendments will not affect the classification of the Group’s other
liabilities as at December 31, 2022.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 & ZE2022F12A831HIFFE

3.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition exemption
of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in paragraphs
15 and 24 of IAS 12 Income Taxes so that it no longer applies to
transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences.

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, for
leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable to
the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12 requirements to the
relevant assets and liabilities separately. Temporary differences
on initial recognition of the relevant assets and liabilities are not
recognised due to application of the initial recognition exemption.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group will recognise a
deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary difference
can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with the right-of-use
assets and the lease liabilities.

The amendments are effective for the Group’s annual reporting
periods beginning on January 1, 2023. As at December 31,
2022, the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities which are subject to the amendments amounted to
RMB493,172,000 and RMB444,203,000 respectively, in which the
Group will recognize the related deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities of the RMB111,051,000 and RMB123,293,000
respectively. The cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments will be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as
appropriate) at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 EZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements includes applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
the consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realizable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

For financial instruments which are transferred at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique is
calibrated so that the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 & ZE2022F12A831HIFFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4, HZEMBBRROEREERE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ESEEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value Ieoh - MBS ERmmE - AAERER
measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the BANEFENEABIBEIEBEEE R
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are BABBHARNEASRENEZUS
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value HRE—M  F_RAE=H - B5t
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows: W

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active o EHEABKBREENTE2R
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can BR] AEVS AR B E R B ER
access at the measurement date; GRS E (B CRSTE)

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included o FRBASBEREEXEE
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, EE S EE R R A8 AR
either directly or indirectly; and (BF—RABIEORERRIN) &

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or . FoRWMABBREEELBED
liability. AT A BE -

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below. PR = E @S BERE N T X °

Basis of consolidation e REAE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial FREMBHRERESAARRAREES

statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company HERERENBATNTBHRE - AR

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Company: BIRA T R A 1 il

. has power over the investee; o AT EHRITERE S

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its . F2mEEHR 2 EEMEAZ
involvement with the investee; and FFEEIw s Ak =a R MR

R R

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. . BEITRRE N E DR -

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts WE FE RGBT Dt = @i FE =

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more Hp—fEsk A LEE - AEBEGENT

of the three elements of control listed above. HEEEEHREER

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains ARE B EUS T A B A5 bl e R e

control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses H ZMT% RARA AR - WK EZMN

control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses TE’H BIRER X AR E AR o ,E:L

of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are C RERFTUEE S L EMIEA

included in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other E’Jﬂﬂli\&ﬁrﬁfiﬂﬂ$%lﬁl SE %WF“

comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until Fast AR e 18m R E M 2R -

the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. BEEAEETHBEHZMBATERA
Ik e
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 EZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and
the non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to
the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable IFRSs).

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable assets
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date
of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 EZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which
includes an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The acquired
processes are considered substantive if they are critical to the
ability to continue producing outputs, including an organised
workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to
perform the related processes or they significantly contribute to the
ability to continue producing outputs and are considered unique
or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or
delay in the ability to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

For business combinations in which the acquisition date is on or
after January 1, 2022, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued by IASB in
March 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) except for transactions
and events within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC 21 Levies, in which
the Group applies IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 instead of the Conceptual
Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business
combination. Contingent assets are not recognised.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 #ZE2022F12A31HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4., SZEMBHRRNVEREERFE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ESEEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (¥GAaHEEWE(E)

(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued) EXAOF(E)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the RUEEBE - BB AERIEERA

liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair value, except that: BEREZEASETUER  BUATEE
BRAM :

124

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognized and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and |IAS
19 Employee Benefits respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date;

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance
with that standard; and

° lease liabilities are recognized and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in IFRS 16)
as if the acquired leases were new leases at the acquisition
date, except for leases for which (a) the lease term ends
within 12 months of the acquisition date; (b) the underlying
asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognized and
measured at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 EZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as
at acquisition date. If, after assessment, the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognized immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.
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4,

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is indication that the unit (or a group of
cash-generating units) may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-
generating units).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

)
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 EZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is initially recognized in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets
of the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 #ZE2022F12A31HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4., SZEMBHRRNVEREERFE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ESEEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued) REFE AR REEPENER
(&)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted R—REEE QTN —HEERENKRE
for using the equity method from the date on which the investee BEIRETR R E ARG EEE
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the HEEF AERE AR o WHER—fHEE
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the NRE—EEBREIRER  REK
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value IRER AN SR B PR R A T Pl R B B
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognized HEEAAFENEZHSERAEE
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the Wit AFZIREMAREE « AEEEER
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of HBRAEEREGENALFEBLIEENK
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, REVERIZERE - REFTHE BN UL
after reassessment, is recognized immediately in profit or loss in the B A MR IE TR o

period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that AEEMERDAEREEEZRN—HE
the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired. B Nm—HeEhENRE

When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount BREEBE - B ENEEBEERETL
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment KE(BREBE)NE2TEEESIRRE
in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its e T R I6TRIERE —EEMTT
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less BRI - AR E YR &5 (B
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss FREEEQNABERDEKREAHRS
recognized is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that &F)EBREMEELR o Eh 2 ERRE
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of EETeOEEBRENERDE 5
that impairment loss is recognized in accordance with I1AS 36 to the ZAEEE(BIEER) - RERER
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently ERIBEE R ZIERE R ] RS REEE
increases. IR AR PR B BR & 5T AR 365 FERR o
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 EZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss be recognized in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of IFRS 9,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value on the date
it lost significant influence or joint control over the investee and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the associate
or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognized in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if that associate
or joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate.
There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture
of the Group, profits or losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate or joint venture are recognized in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
or joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 #ZE2022F12A31HIEFE

4,

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognizes revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the products or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognized over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognized at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or services.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 EZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Existence of significant financing component

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of
the associated goods or services is less than one year, the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price
for any significant financing component.

Revenue from the sales of products (mainly including coke and
chemicals products) directly to customers is recognized when
control of the goods has been transferred, being when the
products are accepted by the customers at the customer’s specific
destination or the Group’s plants. The customers have full discretion
over the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customers’ acceptance of the products. A receivable
is recognized by the Group when the goods are delivered to the
customers as this represents the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is
required before payment is due. Customers have no right to return
the products purchased once accepted.

Revenue from the management service provided to customers is
recognized when services are provided.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is
a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services
itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods
or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an
agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service
before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for
the provision of the specified good or service by another party. In
this case, the Group does not control the specified good or service
provided by another party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognizes
revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 #ZE2022F12A31HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4., SZEMBHRRNVEREERFE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ESEEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) BR&aHWE(E)

Contract costs ERMKA

Costs to fulfil a contract BITEERI KA
AEERERIBERRBENTELER
TERBIKA « REEEERERMIE
BRI A ZSENARD 6 B BERE
BE  MTEER  EEFEUTEE
BEZERAERREE

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its sales of products
and service contracts. The Group first assesses whether these
costs qualify for recognition as an asset in terms of other relevant
standards, failing which it recognizes an asset for these costs only
if they meet all of the following criteria:

e the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated o B BARK 7N B 7N £ [ A] BA T Bl Y
contract that the Group can specifically identify; ARISEHERBEEZBIER
e the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group e FAHEKASALREKBRET

(KFFEETT) BRBHOBEH &
IRISLAEESAIEM : &

that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future; and

e the costs are expected to be recovered. o BRAKATEAAAT YL -

132

The asset so recognized is subsequently amortized to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate. The

asset is subject to impairment review.

Lease

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application of IFRS 16 or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on
the definition under IFRS 16 at inception or modification date. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of

the contract are subsequently changed.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 EZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Lease (Continued)
The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-lease
components from lease component, and instead account for the
lease component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; and

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Lease (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term is depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognizes and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:
° fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;
and

° amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 EZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Lease (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating lease is recognized in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Variable lease payments for operating leases
that depend on an index or a rate are estimated and included in the
total lease payments to be recognized on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognized as income when they arise.
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED GREMBERRNOEREERE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ESEEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies HNEE

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. When a fair value gain or loss on a
non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in profit or loss.
When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items are recognized in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case, the exchange rates at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of foreign currency translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate). Such
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accumulated differences are reclassified to profit or loss in the B o
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
Borrowing costs EE/NDN

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 EZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalization rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognized until there is a reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognizes as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognized as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on
a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable. Such grants are presented under
“other income”.

Retirement benefit scheme contribution

Payable to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and the
retirement funds scheme managed by local social security bureau
in accordance with the government regulations in Hong Kong and
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), are recognized as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Short-term employee benefit

Short-term employee benefits are recognized at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits to be paid as and when employees rendered
the service. All short-term employee benefits are recognized as
expense unless another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages, salaries and annual leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary
difference associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests
in associates and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amounts of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognizes the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognized at initial recognition and over the lease
terms due to application of the initial recognition exemption.

4,

REVBHRRNEREER T
ESBER(#)

HIA(E)

R BETIRER B AR M E
KRB RRIMNE 2 hRAESEREN
FERHE R RMAER - EARREHRE
HNEHERERNERIERERKA
BETNE AT RASREBERRSN - T E ERR%
EREPESBBNENBREREZEM
EEMERRIBEE  EEREARH
FERRTOE MIAB) R E iy Z R A 25 N T Hf
TAR] L SR R B R o

EEHIBEERMENSREHRE
B - R P B SR AR A AN (B
2EABOEE -

ERERIREEMABIDAERNENE
ERBREENHRERAOBRE - RI%
REREHRCBHXEE EERMHH
BER(RBOE)GHE »

ERETIR B E M EEMN HERRRAR
SERNSHRERBH @S ENE
ERAEREER LS BHRBFER -

Fhat BN ERERE BEEE AR
EREMNHEERSGMBELEREAMS © &
SEELEENRHNREEBENER
BEELHEERE -

PSR BEREHBENRNEER ST
5 AREHERREERBERAED
e R BB & 5T RSB 125% A/
ZHTE - AERAHERH T - BER
REEMMEREARIERIEERYL
AR NETERE RN HEHRER -

2022 i
RE B EEARA A

139




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire MR mR M (4E)

140

For the year ended December 31, 2022 #ZE2022F12A31HIEFE

4,

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Group
considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax authority will
accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be used by
individual group entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable,
the current and deferred taxes are determined consistently with the
tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the
relevant taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most likely
amount or the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under construction as
described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management, including costs of testing whether the
related assets is functioning properly and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Sale proceeds of items that are produced while
bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management (such as samples produced
when testing whether the asset is functioning properly), and the
related costs of producing those items are recognised in the profit
or loss. The cost of those items are measured in accordance with
the measurement requirements of IAS 2. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Ownership in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the costs (other than
properties under construction) less their residual values over their
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Ownership in leasehold land and building (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the profit
or loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below). Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure (Continued)

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognized if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognized for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognized,
development expenditure is recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, and intangible assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (the “CGU”) to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are allocated
to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUs.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or the CGU) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUs, including
the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or a group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
applicable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or a
group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU or the group of CGUSs) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset (or the CGU or the group of CGUs) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 #ZE2022F12A31HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no longer
meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value and restricted deposits arising from pre-
sale of properties that are held for meeting short-term cash
commitments. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as
defined above.

2022 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited

REVMBHRRNEREER T
ESBER(8)

R MReEHEEY

ReMREFENNGRMBIRNERZ
5l

(a) Re - HBRFRRSNWEHF
Fo TREXEERGIMERE
MESRTBTARSERNRT
B M

by REEEY HpEEHEEE
REEBAA=M@ARER) - 7
BERsE A D MEEIR S AEE
SHREB RO RE MR E K
AR S RERENESE
MEFRSZRITR - REeSE
IS ER R EIR S RIE - M3k
ARIEESEMEH -

MEEERERERMNE @ RekBReF
BEYMERELXEENRE MRS EE
1) o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

)
REVBHRRMEE)

For the year ended December 31, 2022 #ZE2022F12831HIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

[nventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Costs of inventories are determined using weighted average cost
formula. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs to completion and the costs
necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and non-
incremental costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Properties for/under development which are intended to be sold
upon completion of development and properties for sale are
classified as current assets. Except for the leasehold land element
which is measured at cost model in accordance with the accounting
policies of right-of-use assets, properties for/Junder development/
properties for sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a specific identification basis including
allocation of the related development expenditure incurred and
where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for the properties less
estimated cost to completion and costs necessary to make the
sales. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental costs
directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Properties for/under development for sale are transferred to
properties for sale upon completion.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past events
but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an obligation, the
part of the obligation that is expected to be met by other parties
is treated as a contingent liability and it is not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits has become probable. If
it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will
be required for an item previously dealt with as a contingent liability,
a provision is recognised in the consolidated financial statements
in the reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 EZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognized and derecognized on a trade day basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4., SZEMBHRRNVEREERFE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ESEEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued) LRI T A ()

Financial assets SREE

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets THREESEREFE

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently FEUTRENSRE EEBIREIHEK

measured at amortized cost: RETE -

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose . ZeMEER —BEEERA TR
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect B BARESREENKE
contractual cash flows; and aRHEeERE &

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on o SRIEE & NBRFREE B
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of EEZHEEREARRINAS
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. RARBEERSZFIE

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently HEUTRENEMEERLBIEAAE

measured at FVTOCI: FTAHMEERETE ¢

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose . ZeMEER —BEERATH
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting £ BENARFKEE DR SR
contractual cash flows; and ERHESREE &

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on o SREE 2 & NGB EE B
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of EEZHEEREMARRSZNAS
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. RAREBERSZFIE -

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, FrEHMEMEELBZRANER AR

except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset the WEtE  BEEHARREeREEZH

Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair WZRAIEEWIERHERE » IFIEHR

value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) W bE 75 7 BB B 75 3R 5 E R BB 355 %

if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent BEMIFMERNEBE MR ERK
consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination ARME - AEE AN REEHEERE

to which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies. fth 2 E Y E ([ Efth 2 E Y ) 25

TEMERAAERD -
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment
that meets the amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

Amortized cost and interest income

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortized cost and
receivables subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortized cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Receivables classified as at FVTOC!

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for receivables
classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest income calculated
using the effective interest method, are recognized in profit or
loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of these receivables
are recognized in OCI| and accumulated under the other reserve.
Impairment allowance are recognized in profit or loss with
corresponding adjustment to OCI without reducing the carrying
amounts of these receivables. The amounts that are recognized in
profit or loss are the same as the amounts that would have been
recognized in profit or loss if these receivables had been measured
at amortized cost. When these receivables are derecognized,
the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortized cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any fair
value gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognized in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other gains
and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including other long-
term receivables, other receivables, trade and bills receivables
measured at FVTOCI, amounts due from related parties and bank
balances) and financial guarantee contracts which are subject
to impairment assessment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at the end of each reporting period to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the end of each reporting period.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the end of each reporting period as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognizes lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and amounts due from related parties arising from contracts with
customers. The ECL on these assets are assessed collectively using
a provision matrix with appropriate groupings except that significant
balances are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognizes lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognized is based on significant increases in the
likelihood of risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the end of each reporting
period with the risk if a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

4,

REVBHRRNEREER T
ESBER(#)

SR TE(E)
SRMEE(H)

EHEERERZRRERYEHEE
RIZE9H R T i E 142 B o517 (/)

2HBEMEEERENMIE T ARSRS
HIRB AR B Al RER MO B (AT E M
BHEEEE - BItEY - 12AE
HEEBR(12EARBEEEBR])
ERARSREMRE12EARNATEE
BEMEOSHERMNEL 2 AN
FEEER - HERBEAKEBEEEES
BRERETT  URBERURFTFER
= BREAERRUARNS &Y
AT B AR AR TERI B RF & T VR

REBERKRE HRUGARRE S
R B KIE LRI BREE T SR RER 2
BHEERE - ZFEENBEREES
BERAAEEDENBEBEEETSE
BAHE(ERERERIFHEERIN) o

MATEEMTAMS - AREAEER
BEEN12EARREEESE  KIF
BEERR B VRERAREE LT
RIEERT - BIREERER 2 HEHE
EER - AR EERAHNENEE
BIRTIIRIE B VA FER AR B A2 L
B AT BE ML RRSE LT -

=B EfR A EE 0

REHEEERBRRE B VIRERARK
TRIGINET - AR T ARER
EMRERZONAREZ SR T AR
VIETER R LR QAR © (EILRT
- AREEERAENEEENE
ENREMER  BREELERIBAL
BN MERARAE S AN SR BT 1

2022 i
RE B EEARA A

153




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

154

For the year ended December 31, 2022 & ZE2022F12A831HIFFE

4,

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the end of each reporting period. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii)
the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic
and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rating
of ‘investment grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group becomes
a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be the date
of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition of financial guarantee contracts,
the Group considers the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event
of default occurs when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay all
amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Definition of default (Continued)

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries
made are recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 EZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical data and
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The Group
uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade receivables
using a provision matrix taking into consideration historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward looking information that is
available without undue cost and effort.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required to make
payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the
ECL is the present value of the expected payments to reimburse
the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the
Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtors or any other

party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the effective
interest rate cannot be determined, the Group will apply a discount
rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks that are specific to the cash flows but only fif,
and to the extent that, the risks are taken into account by adjusting
the discount rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being
discounted.

4,

REVBHRRNEREER T
ESBER(#)

SR TE(E)
SRMEE(H)

EHEERERZRRERYEHEE
RIE9# IR T Rl E 142 B b5 R ()

BHIE B E R a8 RIER

TEEEEBIENFTET SR OME - 2
ABEE(BMHEL S BURRHIZE) K
EXRBE I o SRR OBRIEL
BRERBBEBIEMATRIEER MIE
- BRI EEBENGER RIRERE R
PR IEREER - ETVREINEAEME
BERNERETE - NEBRBAITERS
% NIRBHRERE IR E 5 R YRR
BHREEERR  ETitRBEEEER
& WAREHBNHTLRE HAIA]
SRR BRI THEE

—RME - BEEERMGT SAEE
RESNEKHMARNERE S REER
SEBEEBNAMERSRE ZHNE
B WIRIAHER R B E M B IR A RS
iH .

MM BRREOME - ARBEBEERE
BB RREXEGEFOBER TEL
Ko B - BREEBEIZEESBA
EERANBERNRNERE  ZEER
RBENEEFBERURAA - EHEAK
EREMTESHERASEE

AT RN RN M BERE 0N
BHEEERMNE - AKBEHRARBR
B AT B B B (EE R T ISR R
ERFERRIRIRE - EERREAR
RABMR R MIFRHBARFNRE T
RANE R -

2022 i
RE B EEARA A

157




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBHmRNE(E)

158

For the year ended December 31, 2022 & ZE2022F12A831HIFFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and other receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as forward looking

macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration the

following characteristics when formulating the grouping:
. Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk

characteristics.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances are
recognized at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with IFRS 9; and the amount initially
recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income

recognized over the guarantee period.

Except for trade and bill receivables measured at FVTOCI and
financial guarantee contract, the Group recognizes an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of other receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognized through a loss
allowance account. For trade and bill receivables measured at
FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognized in OCI and accumulated
in the other reserve without reducing the carrying amounts of these
debt receivables. Such amount represents the changes in the other

reserve in relation to accumulated loss allowance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 EZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire, or when it transfers
the financial assets and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred financial asset,
the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the
financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as
at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the other reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments that are issued are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

REVBHRRNEREER T
ESBER(#)

SR TE(E)
SRMEE(H)
HUBIEBEE

AEEEEEEVICRERE 2R
EmRESEREEREEEREERN
BARE D R &M REBE T 5 — I
IHERSREE  WMAKBERETERET
TREHATREENBAZEER &
B - WAERBZH EERNSREE
REFESREAREFEEX TS RER
HREERABEENREELS © WA
SERACHZCREEMBENEX
BoER L@ - AEEEEERS R
BE  YHBWRERZAERRERFE
HEE -

PR IR B AT BN S REE
- BEMKEERC R ERAER
BNEREERETHER

R IR D BRI AAEFARME
ER R ES TARER - ERTREM
FRBRFTZ R REHERIEHR DA

ESisEl

TRAERES
FREETHERRRATARBMAEI LA
HWLPFHAT D ERT R B ESER -
BRAETA
BATAGEREENINGEMERRE
BRZNBEERD ZEAEL - AEE

AT 2 R T BRPURER Z FRAS R T
BB BEITRAER

2022 i
Al

RS




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

eV BHRRME(E)

160

For the year ended December 31, 2022 #ZE2022F12A31HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is (i) held for trading, or (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

° it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities at amortized cost, including trade and other
payables, amounts due to related parties and bank and other loans,
are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Financial
liabilities at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 EZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair
values. It is subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance
with IFRS 9; and

. the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognized over the guarantee
period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, canceled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is
recognized in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 & ZE2022F12A831HIFFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 5. EXREHERMEFTEREM

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY ) EERIR

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are RERAM TSN RN EREFHE
described in note 4, the Directors are required to make estimates B BEEARMAEEEMRIRERER
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and MWEERBENER@AEL G RR
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The & o (hET RARRA R R AR IR B L5
estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical RAEANEMEZIEL - BRAERK
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. BRI o

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an et AR B A ERRET
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized sSEFHEFHEL VBT R EHEEHEL &
in the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision affects A EIEAER(MEBET R EZ
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if HARE)) - SopMEET R EARE I B 1% HA R fe
the revision affects both current and future periods. RUNBREI 2SR ARER)
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies FEF TR R EAR A
The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving NTRESERAREENGTIER
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the BRERNERHE (TSP RIEET
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that RERFAE (R T30 - 25 HEENER
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the S BRERTHERNSHERERY
consolidated financial statements. Zo

Revenue recognition TR

Application of various accounting principles related to the fER B2 RERREEENSBEET
measurement and recognition of revenue requires the Group to [RENE KRS BEL 2B R (At - Bag
make judgements and estimates. Specifically, significant judgments ms @ EXHEBRIEACTAEEZEE
include determining whether the Group is acting as the principal in BRINERA - WASERE~EE
a transaction. The Group is a principal in a transaction if the Group EmRBEIESIFTE HAE MR H
obtains control of the products sold or services provided before BIRTS - BIREBARSHERA « B
they are transferred to customers. When the Group is primarily AEBERSPRETERT - &R
obligated in a transaction, is subject to inventory risk, has latitude EREk - 7] B RGBSR ERER
in establishing prices and selecting suppliers, or has several but AR TEIEZMBZFERR - K&
not all of these indicators, the Group records revenues on a gross B ESIRREALR - TR NEEEAT
basis. Otherwise, the Group records the net amount earned as BREUFRARY AL EEm IR RS
commissions from products sold or services provided. AT ©
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next twelve
months are as follows:

Useful life and impairment of property, plant and equipment

In determining whether an asset is impaired, the management
requires an estimation of recoverable amount of an individual asset
or the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs, and has
to exercise judgement and make significant degree of estimation
in determining the recoverable amount of the assets, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset’s value; (2) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case
of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is